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1

P R O C E E D I N G S

2
3

THE JUDGE:

I want to thank

4

you for taking your time to be here today to

5

participate in this public rulemaking process.

6

Today is January 19, 2021 and it's

7

9:30 a.m.

8

Matter of the Proposed Rules of the Department of

9

Health Governing Assisted Living Facilities,

We are here for a public hearing in the

10

Minnesota Rule, chapter 4659.

11

referenced as OAH Docket Number 65-9000-37175.

12

Please pay particular attention to those last five

13

numbers, because they will help you navigate the

14

eComment website.

15

comments, if you do so by mail or fax, you will

16

need to reference this docket number, consider it a

17

court number, a court case number, so that your

18

comments can be directed to me and not kind of lost

19

along the way.

20

This matter will be

And when you submit your

My name is Ann O'Reilly and I'm an

21

administrative law judge with the Office of

22

Administrative Hearings.

23

Administrative Hearings is independent of the

24

Minnesota Department of Health as well as the

25

groups or individuals that are participating in

The Office of
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1

this hearing.

The role of our office is to provide

2

hearings that are fair to all participants.

3

We'll go to the next slide.

4

other directives from the legislature, specifically

5

those of Minnesota Statutes chapter 14, rule making

6

hearings are conducted so that members of the

7

public can be heard as part of the rulemaking

8

process.

9

procedural fairness to ensure that we are courteous

10

to each other so that all interested parties can be

11

heard and to draw out knowledge from as many voices

12

as possible.

13

process is that we rely on the wisdom of the group,

14

thus, we are grateful that you are contributing

15

your thoughts, experiences and expertise in the

16

formation of these substantive rules.

17

Among

I am here to ensure that there is

An underlying assumption of this

This hearing is part of a process by

18

which rules are adopted under the Minnesota

19

Administrative Procedure Act.

20

rulemaking proceeding, the department is required

21

to, number one, document its statutory authority to

22

adopt the rule; two, demonstrate that it has

23

fulfilled all relevant, legal and procedural

24

requirements of the law; and, three, demonstrate

25

the need for and reasonableness of each portion of

During this
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1

the proposed rules with an affirmative presentation

2

of facts.

3

interested in reviewing as part of this proceeding.

These are the three big issues I'm

4

Now, some of you are here to express

5

your thoughts or views on various parts of the

6

rules.

7

department and the process.

8

not to rewrite the rules as proposed based upon the

9

views of the participants, nor is it to select one

And that's certainly helpful to the
My job, however, is

10

set of proposed rules over another set.

11

job is to ensure that the statutory requirements

12

for rulemaking are met.

13

Rather, my

Here's a roadmap for the hearing today.

14

After I complete my introductory remarks about the

15

hearing procedures, the Minnesota Commissioner of

16

Health Jan Malcolm will speak.

17

department will introduce the panel and its

18

exhibits into the record.

19

Next, the

Now, I'm going to give you a quick list

20

of the panelists that will be here.

21

up that slide.

22

available to answer questions and to provide

23

information.

24
25

We will pull

These are the panelists that are

And they will be introduced later.
Next slide.

And the exhibits that are

being submitted as part of this rule hearing are
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1

available for view throughout the comment period at

2

the Department of Health website.

3

that link.

4

yourselves, oh, I wish I remembered what was in

5

that PowerPoint, this PowerPoint will also be

6

there.

7

PowerPoint if it is helpful at any time.

Okay?

8
9

Also, this PowerPoint.

Take a look at
So if you find

So you can scroll through the

Let's move to the next slide.

Most

of the hearing time today has been allotted for

10

questions and statements from members of the

11

public.

12

There are two ways that you can submit comments

13

into the record.

14

That's the key reason we are here today.

First, you can provide oral comment

15

here at the hearing.

And, second, you can submit

16

written comments.

17

comments in three different ways.

18

the eComment website, by mail or by fax.

19

is the preferred method for submitting written

20

comments.

21

-- we are going to have a little tutorial about how

22

to use the eComments website.

23

see in realtime all the comments that are being

24

made and any responses to those comments.

25

think it's very helpful.

And you can submit written

And here's why it is.

You can do so by
eComments

eComments if you

But it allows you to

So I

So we look to eComments
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1

as the primary method for commenting.

But if you

2

do not have access or find it too difficult, you

3

can do it by sending in by U.S. Mail your written

4

comments or by faxing.
We will go to the next slide.

5

The next

6

slide.

7

comments at today's hearing.

8

comment at today's hearing, here's what you need to

9

do.

Let's first discuss how to present oral
If you want to

For the WebEx video commenters, please go up

10

to the top of your -- there is a button at the top

11

corner of your computer screen that says "chat."

12

In the chat box, enter your first and last name.

13

That will indicate that you would like to speak and

14

be heard at today's hearing.

15

the names in the chat to call you, call on you to

16

speak in the order in which your name was entered.

17

So you might want to start doing that now.

18

The operator will use

For telephone commenters, you have

19

already been entered into the queue in the order of

20

your call, so long as you called the InterCall

21

number and not the WebEx telephone number.

22

WebEx telephone number was just for people who want

23

to use telephone as their audio for WebEx.

24

InterCall is the way -- to make a comment by phone,

25

you must use InterCall.
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But

9

1

Now, with WebEx, I will be able to see

2

you.

3

turn on your video when that time comes around.

4

All right.

5

queue from both the telephone and WebEx in the

6

order entered into the queue.

7

call your name when it is your turn to speak.

8

will also announce who is on deck.

9

is second in line.

10

Okay?

And we are going to talk about how to

The operator will announce speakers in

The operator will
She

That means who

So that person can get ready to

go.

11

For those joining by WebEx, please turn

12

on your video by clicking on the video icon.

13

will allow me to see you, and the operator will

14

unmute you when it's your turn to speak.

15

having a little difficulty trying to figure out how

16

to turn on my video.

17

Cody is our master technician and he can walk us

18

through.

19

with the first WebEx commenter he is going to kind

20

of walk through how to turn on your video so I can

21

see you and you can see me and we can go from

22

there.

23

That

I was

And we have Cody here today.

So if you are finding difficulty, he will

When your name is called -- we will go

24

to the next one.

When your name is called, please

25

state and spell your first and last name and
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1

identify the entity, if any, that you represent.

2

Please remember that this hearing is

3

being transcribed by a Court Reporter.

4

our Court Reporter here today and she may if you

5

are speaking too fast or if she can't hear you well

6

enough, she is going to let you know.

7

important, because she wants to make sure that the

8

transcript is as clear as possible.

9

you hear someone asking you to speak louder or

10

Susan is

And that's

Okay?

clearer or slower, please listen to that.

11

So if

Okay?

Make sure that all of your statements

12

are verbal.

13

down gestures or non-audible responses.

14

helpful if you spell any proper names and technical

15

terms as well as acronyms when you use them.

16

Because I might not be as familiar as you are, as

17

everybody else here about the terms that were used

18

in this field.

19

the least knowledge of anybody here today.

20

you have been working on these rules for quite some

21

time, you work in the environment or you are

22

involved in health care.

23

to understand if there are words or phrases I'm

24

unfamiliar with or acronyms, I might have you

25

refresh me or help me to know what those are.

Obviously, the transcript can't take
And it's

Now, at this point, I probably have
All of

So I ask that you help me
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So

11

1

thank you for being patient with me today.

2

We will go to the next slide.

A rule

3

hearing is similar to a legislative hearing or

4

meeting of a local board or city council.

5

have the opportunity to speak and ask questions of

6

other participants.

7

process.

8

courteous to each other and we respect time limits,

9

so that we can ensure everybody can be heard.

10

You will

It's a fairly informal

But I'm here today to ensure that we are

For purposes of clarity of the record,

11

it's helpful to be specific in your comment to tell

12

me exactly which rules or rule parts you support or

13

object to or want changed and why.

14

I expect to have time for everyone to

15

be heard, but it may be helpful if you organize

16

your remarks and highlight of them.

17

supplement your oral comments, you can, of course,

18

by submitting in writing materials.

19

talk about how to do that.

20

If you want to

And we will

All right.

Now we are going to do a quick tutorial

21

on how to use the eComments website.

22

So you will first go to at the top of this slide --

23

and, Cody, I don't know, I have these little gold

24

boxes that are showing up on my screen.

25

MR. BAULEKE:

All right.

Sorry, I'm just

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
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1

doing a little bit sy once.

2

couple of things.

3

aren't up.

4

So you are seeing a

But I will make sure those

THE JUDGE:

No problem.

I just

5

wasn't sure if I was the only one seeing them.

6

there is some feedback.

7

Cody, if you go on mute, we will have less feedback

8

while I run through this how to submit an eComment.

9

I apologize.

MR. BAULEKE:
THE JUDGE:

10

And

So maybe,

Okay.
First, you will go

11

to this website, the

12

www.minnesotaoah.granicusideas.com.

13

like this.

14

this is what you will see.

15

slide.

All right.

It's easiest if you sign in or

16

sign up right way.

If you sign in, that means you

17

have already been there before.

18

your e-mail address in and the password.

19

haven't ever used granicus before, you are going to

20

need to sign up.

21

signup.

22

that you remember.

23

forget it.

24

click that "I am not a robot."

25

you a verification.

It will look

You will pull it up and it will have -Let's go to the next

Really simple.

So you will put
If you

You use this

You put your e-mail, you pick a password
Write that down so you don't

You put your first and last name in and
It will then send
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1

Let's go to the next slide, please.

2

All right.

You will get an e-mail and in that

3

e-mail it will have a thing that says click here

4

when you are in that e-mail.

5

you are going to go check your e-mail.

6

going to get an e-mail and you are going to click

7

here and it's going to take you back to the

8

homepage.

9

suggest that you do sign up, even if you just want

After you sign up,
You are

Now you are all set and ready to go.

I

10

to read comments it's easier to manipulate the site

11

if you sign up or sign in.

12

So now you are ready to go.

You are

13

signed up or you are signed in.

14

the comments that are being made or you want to

15

submit your own, so you hit "discussions" there in

16

the left-hand corner.

17

it.

18

You want to review

You can see a red box around

Click on "discussion."
The next slide.

Okay.
I will show you what

19

that takes you to.

Now, that will take you to a

20

page and you will look at it and say what does this

21

have to do with me.

22

Because at first, it will just show all the

23

different rules that are currently active.

24

will scroll down a little ways and this is where

25

you are going to need to know that number 37175.

You will need to scroll down.
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1

Okay?

So you will scroll down until you see 37175.

2

That's our rule here today.

3

Health Notice of Hearing.

4

click on the "view discussion."

5

box there in the red.

6

It's a Department of
And you are going to
See that little

Click that.

All right.

Now let's go to the next page.

Now,

7

again, there is a little scrolling here.

8

thing that's a little tricky about the eComments

9

website, if you don't scroll you won't see what to

And the

10

do next.

So you scroll down and you hit "view

11

topic."

12

to the next page, please.

13

right.

14

will think, I was just right here at this page.

15

It's a little deceiving.

16

are going to see at that point all of the comments

17

and replies that are being made.

18

time reading through all of them and looking at

19

them.

20

make your comment, scroll all the way down to the

21

bottom and then you will see this box.

22

name and then you can either type in your comment

23

there or you can already have your comment in a

24

Word Document or a PDF and you can just attach your

25

file.

So you click on "view topic."

Let's get

Next slide, please.

All

Again, now it will take you back and you

But scroll again.

You

And you can spend

But if you just want to go straight down and

That will be your comment.

Enter your

That might be
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1

easiest.

Sometimes I like to sit and think and I

2

want to change things, so I might make a document,

3

like a letter or some type of document.

4

might want to attach a study that I think is

5

important.

6

buttons are for, so that you can do attachments.

7

Or maybe you just have a short thing to say or that

8

you have already cut and pasted it from a Word

9

Document and you just put it right there into where

That's what these choose a file little

10

it says "comment."

11

then you need to hit "post."

12

makes it go live.

13

comment.

14

department can see it.

15

Or you

That's how you comment.

And

Because that's what

Then everybody can see your

I can see it, boom, it's filed.

The

Let's go to the next slide then.

So

16

that's how you do it.

17

keep handy a copy of this PowerPoint which will be

18

on the agency's website.

19

confusion with granicus, you can use my PowerPoint

20

to walk you through it.

21

That's why you might want to

So if you have a little

Here are some important dates.

22

Minnesota Statutes, section 14.15, subdivision 1

23

provides that the administrative law judge may, by

24

order, keep the hearing record open for up to 20

25

days after the end of the public hearing.
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1

doing that now.

Twenty days goes -- let's go,

2

Cody, if you could, go back to the other slide.

3

Good.

4

starting -- tomorrow is when the public hearing

5

closes, so 20 days from that is February 9, 2021.

6

All comments must be received by 4:30 p.m. on that

7

day.

8

the mail I have to receive it by February 9, 2021.

9

We are going to upload the documents we received by

10

mail or fax into the granicus eComments so that the

11

public can see it and the agency will see it.

12

that's why we say we really, really prefer and

13

strongly recommend, especially in this time of

14

COVID, to use the eComments website to submit your

15

comments.

So I am ordering a 20-day comment period

Now, that means that if you put something in

16

Now let's go to the next slide.

But

Now,

17

when that comment period ends, by law there is five

18

business days for rebuttal.

19

reply to something someone said.

20

comment.

21

material.

22

that five business days ends on February 17, 2021

23

at 4:30 p.m.

24

dates, if you will.

25

you need to have it in my hand on the granicus

Right?

Now, rebuttal is a
It's not a new

It's not to introduce any new

And because there is a holiday there,

And, again, those are hard close
So if you want your comment in
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1

eComments by 4:30 p.m. on that day.

2

Next slide please.

That's when --

3

February 17 is when the hearing record will close.

4

After that, I will prepare a report that contains

5

my conclusions about whether the department has met

6

its statutory burden in this matter.

7

whether the department has documented its authority

8

to enact the rules or whether the department

9

fulfilled all the procedural rules, requirements

Specifically

10

and whether the department has demonstrated the

11

need and reasonableness of each portion of the

12

rule.

13

You can expect my report approximately

14

30 days from the last comment deadline.

15

February 17, unless an extension is necessary.

16

my report will be published on our OAH website on

17

the day that it's issued.

18

our website there.

19

that's where we publish all of our decisions.

You will see the link.

And

Again, I'm just

21

making clear, because these deadlines are very

22

important, keep in mind these two dates.

23

comments received after those dates may not be

24

considered.

25

And

So you can keep checking

Next slide, please.

20

That's

Let's go to the next slide.
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This is

18

1

something I just have to remind everybody.

2

I'm required to let you know that if you are a

3

lobbyist you must register with the Campaign

4

Finance and Public Disclosure Board.

5

questions you have about that can be directed to

6

the Board.

7

By law,

And any

And that's on their website.
All right.

Let's go to the next slide.

8

Okay.

9

you want to speak via WebEx put your name into the

Now is the time if you haven't already and

10

chat box to be placed into the queue.

11

to go into the chat box right now is if you hover

12

above your screen you will see there is a box that

13

says "chat."

So you hover your mouse at the top of

14

your screen.

You will see chat.

15

there.

16

collecting the names.

Put your name in

It will be sent to the host.

17

All right.

And the way

The host is

If you are calling, you are

18

already entered in the queue.

19

operator know your first and last name.

20

forget to state that.

21

Make sure to let the
I did

Well, thank you for your time today.

22

And with this, I am going to welcome Commissioner

23

Jan Malcolm who has some comments today.

24
25

MR. BAULEKE:

She should be up in

one moment.
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1

THE JUDGE:

2

a little bit of trouble navigating here to see

3

my --

4
5

MR. BAULEKE:

COMMISSIONER MALCOLM:

Okay.

Judge, O'Reilly, can you hear me?

8
9

Jan, you should be

good to speak.

6
7

Cody, I'm having just

THE JUDGE:
just a little bit of trouble.

I can.

I'm having

I'm going to ask

10

Cody to help me to navigate to how I go back to

11

seeing the screen, once the screen changed.

12
13

MR. BAULEKE:

Would you like me to

share the PowerPoint again?

14

THE JUDGE:

15

to see anything.

16

Cisco WebEx training.

17

No.

I would just like

Because now it's just called

MR. BAULEKE:

Yeah, at the bottom

18

if you see that, like, little blue ball, you can

19

click on that you will get back in our Cisco WebEx.
THE JUDGE:

20
21
22

not.

The blue ball?

I'm

It says audio conference, invite and remind.
MR. BAULEKE:

Okay.

So if you go

23

to participants, there should be a little drop-down

24

for who's speaking.

25

THE JUDGE:

So let's just explain

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
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1

that for members of the public here really quick.

2

If you hover over where it says "participants," you

3

will see your name, and that's when you can, like

4

I'm going to do right now, I see Ms. Malcolm, I'm

5

going to open, enlarge the screen so I can see her.

6

And we are ready to go.

7

Thank you, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER MALCOLM:

8

you, Judge.

9

this important part of our process.

And thank you, everyone, for joining

10

Jan Malcolm.

11

Minnesota Department of Health.

12

serve in this role.

13

Well, thank

I am

I am the Commissioner of the
It's my honor to

In May of 2019, the Minnesota

14

Legislature passed House File 90 which ushered in

15

critical new consumer protections for aging and

16

vulnerable adults who live in the home care

17

setting.

18

groups, conversations and meetings lead to

19

consensus language which was a remarkable

20

accomplishment backed by a joint stakeholder letter

21

sent to Governor Walz and legislative leaders

22

urging their passage of this law late in the 2019

23

session.

24
25

Months and months of stakeholder work

The new assisted living licensure law
becomes effective August 1 of 2021 and replaces our
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1

current, very confusing, multipart, fragmented

2

regulatory system when it comes to regulating

3

housing with services or assisted living, as we

4

have come to know it.

5

licensure processes for housing and services, now

6

each assisted living facility will have one

7

integrated license that combines housing with

8

services and home care regulations.

9

Instead of different

The intent of this assisted living

10

licensure law is to strengthen the rights and

11

well-being of aging and vulnerable adults

12

throughout the state and establish consistent and

13

reasonable expectations for the providers of

14

assisted living housing and services.

15

Within the new law, the State

16

Department of Health was authorized and required to

17

adopt rules for all assisted living facilities that

18

promote person-centered planning and service

19

delivery and optimal quality of life.

20

MDH will adopt rules to help ensure that resident

21

rights are protected, resident choice is allowed,

22

and public health and safety are assured.

In addition,

23

MDH convened a rules advisory committee

24

made up of many of the same stakeholder groups that

25

helped shape this law to begin with.
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1

committee met five times before March of 2020, when

2

the COVID pandemic reached Minnesota and disrupted

3

all aspects of our lives.

4

During our statewide COVID response

5

activities, MDH staff have continued to move ahead

6

to draft proposed rules, soliciting stakeholder

7

feedback at various times over many months, getting

8

us to the point where we are today.

9

Public hearings that are kicking off

10

today and tomorrow are the next important step in

11

that process.

12

stakeholders to share their comments and feedback

13

with us on the draft rules.

14

many people have engaged with us and are interested

15

in making their voices heard on this critical rule

16

law.

17

This is an important opportunity for

We appreciate that so

The state health department absolutely

18

understands the importance of getting this right.

19

Adopting rules that reflect what the statute

20

intended.

21

comments over the next two days.

22

We look forward to hearing public

Before we begin, I would like to

23

express my deep personal thanks to the many

24

stakeholders, providers and advocates who have been

25

involved in this process from the very beginning.
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1

And a special thanks to the MDH staff who have

2

worked so hard over these last two and a half years

3

to get us to this point, and especially during the

4

last year, despite the challenges that COVID-19 has

5

posed to our agency with so many staff redirected

6

to the COVID response.

7

acknowledge that the COVID pandemic has deeply and

8

dramatically affected the lives of the people who

9

are served by this very law.

As well I just want to

The residents of

10

these facilities, their families and the providers

11

as well.

12

mindful of the importance of this issue and of just

13

the environmental circumstances that have made this

14

process extra challenging during these months.

15

again, I thank you for your active engagement.

16

And, Judge O'Reilly, I thank you for your time and

17

your assistance with this process and for allowing

18

me to make a couple of opening comments.

19

that, I would like to hand it over to one of our

20

staff leaders, Josh Skaar.

21

So we enter this conversation very

THE JUDGE:

So,

And with

Thank you very much.

22

Now, Mr. Skaar, you are going to do two things.

23

You are going to introduce your panel here today

24

and you are going to introduce the exhibits that

25

are available on the website.

Correct?
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1
2

MR. SKAAR:

Yes, Judge.

Are you

ready for me to begin?

3

THE JUDGE:

Yes.

4

MR. SKAAR:

All right.

Good

5

morning, everyone.

Again, my name is Josh Skaar.

6

That's spell J-o-s-h S-k-a-a-r.

7

with the Department of Health, which I am

8

representing during this rulemaking hearing.

I'm an attorney

Today we do have a panel assembled, as

9
10

Judge O'Reilly referenced.

11

questions, that may be directed to them.

12

O'Reilly has provided the names of the panel that's

13

in her slide.

14

noted exception that I will address further in a

15

moment, are MDH staff members and subject matter

16

experts on their respected portions of the rules.

17

If there are any
Judge

These are individuals who, with one

I will just point out here that you

18

don't need to worry about which of the panelists

19

are experts regarding a particular portion of the

20

rule.

21

panel, you can simply address that question to the

22

department generally.

23

it to the appropriate panelist or panelists,

24

depending.

25

If you have a question to address to the

I will do my best to direct

I would like to now introduce our
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1

exhibits into the record.

These have all been

2

filed with the Office of Administrative Hearings

3

and the copies of each exhibit have been posted to

4

our Assisted Living Licensure web page.

5

you in attendance today would have seen a link to

6

this page in the Notice of Hearing on the rules and

7

in the e-mails that we've sent including -- with

8

that Notice of Hearing when it was first published

9

and last week when the exhibits were posted.

Those of

So as Exhibit A we have the Request for

10
11

Comments that was published in the State Register

12

on August 12, 2019.

13

Exhibit B is a placeholder, indicating

14

that this rule is not the product of a petition for

15

rulemaking.

16

Exhibit C is the Proposed Rule,

17

including the Revisor's approval, dated November 9,

18

2020.

19
20
21

Exhibit D is our Statement of Need and
Reasonableness, signed December 2, 2020.
Exhibit E is the transmittal of that

22

Statement of Need and Reasonableness to the

23

Legislative Reference Library.

24
25

Exhibit F is our Notice of Hearing,
signed on December 2, 2020.
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1

Exhibit G are the Certificates of

2

Mailing Notice to our rulemaking list and

3

Certificates of Accuracy of that list.

4
5

Exhibit H is a Certificate of
Additional Notice.

6

Exhibit I are the Public Comments and

7

the department's responses, publishing notice as of

8

January 12, 2021 at 8:00 a.m.

9

Exhibit J is the order of Chief

10

Administrative Law Judge Starr authorizing the

11

department to omit from the Notice of Hearing the

12

text of the proposed rule.

13

Exhibit K is a Certificate of sending

14

the SONAR or Statement of Need and Reasonableness

15

to the legislature pursuant to Minnesota Statute,

16

section 14.116.

17

Exhibit L are the modifications to the

18

proposed rule that the department has made since

19

publication.

20

into one of two categories as described further

21

there in the exhibit.

22

know, those modifications necessary to correct

23

drafting errors which should not substantively

24

change the effect of rule.

25

modifications are those modifications we've made in

Each of these modifications falls

The one category is, you

The second class of
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1

response to the legislature adopting certain

2

portions of these rules into chapter 144G during

3

the 7 special session of the legislature late last

4

year.
Exhibit M are the additional public

5
6

comments and MDH's responses subsequent to the

7

comments reflected in Exhibit I.

8

current as of January 13, 2021.

9

And those are

And I will briefly touch on Exhibit N

10

now.

11

panel, we've also invited Jeremy Peichel, a

12

principal with Civic Intelligence, LLC, to join us

13

today.

14

Reasonableness, Mr. Peichel is here to discuss his

15

survey of providers.

16

some initial survey work that the department

17

incorporated into its discussion of costs in the

18

Statement of Need and Reasonableness, including at

19

item 5 of the regulatory analysis portion of that

20

SONAR beginning on page 12.

21

So in addition to the staff members on our

As described in our Statement of Need and

Mr. Peichel and his team did

We generally engaged Mr. Peichel to

22

help inform our understanding of the costs and

23

impact of the new assisted living licensure

24

requirements.

25

the rules and the statute.

His work has been focused both on
We intend to use his
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1

findings to inform our implementation of these new

2

assisted living requirements.

3

Peichel has continued to gather survey data and

4

provide analysis to the department since

5

publication of these rules and SONAR.

6

yesterday, he finalized the report finalizing these

7

additional survey data.

8
9

To that end, Mr.

As of

His analysis has expanded the
department's understanding of the costs associated

10

with the proposed rule.

It is now the conclusion

11

as described in the SONAR that the combined cost of

12

this rule will not exceed $5000 for the average

13

facility, nor will they exceed $25,000 for a small

14

business or a city-run facility in the first year.

15

Rather, his report provides more detail to support

16

those conclusions.

17

report benefits from having been completed in the

18

aftermath of those recent amendments in chapter

19

144G.

20

response are described in more detail again at

21

Exhibit L.

22

rebuttal to certain arguments in recent comments

23

including the January 15, 2021 comments from

24

Long-Term Care Imperative challenging the

25

sufficiency of the department's analysis and the

In addition, Mr. Peichel's

The subsequent changes to the rules in

In the interest of transparency and in
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1

cost of this proposed rule, we now seek to enter as

2

Exhibit N Civic Intelligence's Cost Baseline and

3

Impact Analysis dated January 18, 2021.

4

again is on the website and you should receive an

5

e-mail alerting you to that.

6
7

With that, Judge, I have nothing
further.

8
9

And this

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

So I don't

forget, Mr. Skaar, would you please, I sent you my

10

two PowerPoints, one for each day.

11

put those on your website where you have these

12

other exhibits, that would save me an e-mail.

13

right?

14
15

MR. SKAAR:

If could also

Yes, Judge.

All

I will

take care of that.

16

THE JUDGE:

Thank you, very much.

17

All right.

You know, let's see, what time --

18

because what I thought was we could take a -- why

19

don't we take a five-minute break.

20

are going to do in that five minutes is we are

21

going to have -- well, let's actually take a

22

10-minute break.

23

I'm going to stay on here.

24

having problems getting on, we will kind of figure

25

those out in between.

Because what we

Let's come back at about 10:15.
And if anybody is
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1
2

Right now, if I could have -- Lynn, are
you our operator today?

3

MS. KNIGHT:

4

THE JUDGE:

Yes, ma'am.
All right, Lynn, can

5

you tell us who the first two speakers are?

6

Because we are turning now to the public comment

7

portion.

Who are our first two speakers today?

8
9
10

MS. KNIGHT:

going to have Sean Burke going first.

And then our

only caller so far is Floris Bellenik (sp).

11
12

From WebEx, we are

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

So she's on

deck; is that correct?

13

MS. KNIGHT:

14

THE JUDGE:

15

we are going to take a quick 10-minute break.

16

10:15, we are all going to come back and, Sean, you

17

are going to be first.

18

our bugs or any kinks that we have with you.

19

are going to have you turn on your video, if you

20

would please.

21

So just hold tight and Lynn, our operator, will be

22

moving between each of you and Cody as well to

23

ensure that whoever is speaking can be seen or

24

heard.

25

Correct.
Okay.

So, Mr. Burke,
At

So we are going to work out
We

And then, Floris, you will be next.

All right?
MS. KNIGHT:

It looks like Floris

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

31

1

disconnected.

So then Sam Orbovich will be second.

2

THE JUDGE:

3

MS. KNIGHT:

4

on WebEx so far.

Yep, everyone else is

The phone is clear.
THE JUDGE:

5

Is Sam on WebEx?

6

good.

7

Orbovich.

8

let everybody get organized.

9

here.

Okay.

Well, very

So we have Sean and then on deck is Sam
Let's take a quick 10-minute break and
And I'm going to sit

I will be muted, but if anybody needs help

10

they can unmute themselves and ask for help.

11

are going off the record until 10:15.

12

THE JUDGE:
Mr. Burke is first.

So we are back on the

14

record.

15

allow Mr. Burke to be seen and heard.

16

MR. BAULEKE:

THE JUDGE:
seeing him?

He should be good to

MR. BURKE:
Judge.

Okay.

Why am I not

Mr. Burke, could we hear you.

20
21

If, Cody, you could

speak and I see he has his webcam on.

18
19

Thank you.

(At this time a brief recess was taken.)

13

17

We

Yes, good morning,

I am here.

22

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

As soon as

23

you speak, I can see you.

Until you speak, we

24

can't hear you.

25

and -- for any members of the public, let me begin

So, sir, if you could please state
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1

by this.

If you are appearing by WebEx and you

2

have difficulty, hover above at the top and hit in

3

"participants" or "chat."

4

a chat to Cody.

5

help you through if you are having trouble.

6

Sometimes I have had this happen where I got stuck

7

on the webpage here that says Cisco WebEx training

8

and it has the Topic and I can't see anybody.

9

you do is you hover over "participants."

So go into chat and send

He is our host.

And Cody will

What

You hit

10

"participants," then you will see the individual

11

talking.

12

talking you will see the little arrows and they

13

look like they are going different directions.

14

Click that and that will bring it up to a full

15

screen so that you can see that.

16

If you have trouble on the phone, you press star 0

17

for the operator.

18

And then in the corner of the person

All right.

All right?

And

So let's turn to Mr. Burke.

19

If you can please state and spell your first and

20

last name.

21

MR. BURKE:

Hello.

Good morning,

22

Judge O'Reilly and panelists.

My name is Sean

23

Burke, S-e-a-n B-u-r-k-e.

24

O'Connell Consulting, O-C-o-n-n-e-l-l.

25

here representing the Minnesota Elder Justice

I'm a consultant with
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1

Center.

And we abbreviate that MEJC.

MEJC is a

2

statewide nonprofit.

3

alleviate elder and vulnerable adult abuse, neglect

4

and financial exploitation.

It works to address and

MEJC was one of the five consumer

5
6

groups convened by Governor Dayton in the winter of

7

2017 to address the series of exploits uncovered by

8

a Star Tribune series of articles about abuse and

9

neglect in nursing homes, assisted living and other

10

long-term care facilities and the lack of an

11

adequate response from the Department of Health.

12

Furthermore, MEJC was a key stakeholder in the

13

ongoing discussions about assisted living licensing

14

and the development of House File 90 that

15

Commissioner Malcolm referenced in her testimony.

16

Now, there are several parts of these

17

rules that are reasonable, necessary and will

18

certainly serve the purpose of the statute.

19

Especially rules about termination and appeals and

20

hearings.

21

on one specific rule that we want to bring your

22

attention to because it needs some adjustments.

23

And that is the rule about staffing.

24
25

However, my testimony today will focus

We believe the proposed rule about
staffing is missing several key details that we
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1

think are necessary and, in fact, very supported by

2

the department's own SONAR.

3

THE JUDGE:

Sir, may I interrupt.

4

I apologize.

5

the exact rule part that you are talking about?

6

That's always very helpful to me.

7

I try not to.

MR. BURKE:

But can you give me

If you have it.

Yes, I do.

We are

8

looking at part 4659.0180.

9

our comments point out several parts of that rule

That'S the rule.

10

that need some adjustments.

11

public time to highlight three of those parts.

And

And I want to use my

12

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

13

MR. BURKE:

So the first is in

14

subpart 3, which is the part that addresses the

15

details of what needs to be in a staffing plan.

16

Now, the department's SONAR clearly lays out the

17

reasons for this rule, because the statute while it

18

requires a facility to create a staffing plan, it

19

leaves out some really key details so that we know

20

and that the department knows exactly how a

21

facility develops its staffing plan.

22

comments point out several areas in subpart 3 that

23

need to be expanded and clarified so that the

24

actual staffing plan when it is completed by a

25

facility can be properly inspected by the
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1

regulators at MDH.

2

some specific examples of where those changes need

3

to happen.

4

And, again, our rules spell out

The second change we really want to

5

highlight is also in subpart 3.

And that is who

6

has ultimate accountability of this staffing plan.

7

The SONAR makes it clear that a clinical nurse

8

supervisor should be developing the plan.

9

don't disagree.

And we

However, the rule does not address

10

who has ultimate accountability.

11

very clear in statute that both the licensee and

12

the assisted living director are in charge of the

13

overall operation of the facility.

14

We believe it's

However, if the rule is allowed to

15

stand as written, it will contradict this mandate

16

in statute.

17

responsibility of the plan on the nurse supervisor.

18

Of course, the nurse supervisor should be making

19

some decisions about the clinical requirements of

20

the plan.

21

obligations on that position leaves some exposure

22

for the department and the public because it

23

doesn't place the requirement in the proper

24

authority.

25

director and the licensee.

Currently the rule places the entire

But to put all of the authority and

And that is the assisted living

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

36

1

Again, in our comments we make some

2

very specific suggestions about how this can be

3

changed.

4

doing so the clinical nurse supervisor is not

5

delegating his or her nursing authority to the

6

assisted living director, but is simply stating

7

that the ultimate responsibility of making sure the

8

staffing plan is completed and executed lies with

9

the assisted living director.

And we think it can be very clear that in

And let me just give a brief example

10
11

about why this is important.

12

supervisor says the staffing plan needs to be

13

staffed in a certain way, meaning we need three

14

nurses to run these shifts during this part of the

15

day for this week and that is in his or her best

16

clinical judgment, the assisted living director

17

maybe at direction of the licensee may say, listen,

18

we don't have the funds to do that.

19

can't do that and may override that decision and be

20

improperly influencing the clinical judgment of the

21

nurse supervisor.

22

accountability be clear about where it lies.

23

If a clinical nurse

And so you

And that's why the

And, finally, the third thing that I

24

point out in my comments is in support of subpart 6

25

of the rule.

Subpart 6 makes it very clear that on
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1

night and weekend shifts the definition of what a

2

reasonable response time is is 10 minutes.

3

think this is reasonable and supported by the SONAR

4

and an important clarification that the statute

5

does not have.

6

adjustment.

7

hours, especially during the day and non-weekend

8

time what should the response time be.

9

We

However, we would make one slight

And that is during other business

Based on MDH's own SONAR, one of the

10

reasons that the night and weekend shifts were

11

culled out is because it can be difficult to make

12

sure that adequate staffing happens during those

13

times.

14

sense to have a shorter response time during the

15

day, such as five minutes.

So we think by that logic it makes complete

16

Again, our comments go in detail about

17

these suggestions and others about the staffing

18

rule.

19

assessments and the variance rules as well.

20

our recommendations are supported by chapter 14 and

21

by the SONAR.

22

testify and being the first ones this morning and

23

we look forward to continued participation in the

24

rebuttal period.

25

panelists.

We also make some slight suggestions in the
All of

We appreciate the opportunity to

Thank you, Judge.

And thank you,
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1

THE JUDGE:

Thank you so much.

2

And I think Mr. Burke is a good example of how it's

3

done.

4

think one of the things I forgot to mention in my

5

opening statement is that we are trying to limit

6

the oral comments to five minutes.

7

going to be -- I don't want to be rude and cut

8

people off, but I want to make sure we get

9

everybody in.

He did a great job of summarizing.

And I

Okay?

I'm not

And if you can't get everything you

10

want to say in five minutes, get back into queue

11

and we will call you after first-time speakers have

12

been heard.

13

your statements.

14

rule parts, the rules and then the subparts that

15

you want me to pay attention to.

16

So it is wonderful when you organize
You walk through the specific

As you will note, I'm writing

17

frantically as you talk.

18

challenges that I have when I write my report is to

19

kind of gather the written documents with the oral

20

testimony and kind of go back and forth.

21

why it's very helpful when you specify which

22

particular rule parts you are addressing.

23

All right.

And so one of the

So that's

So I'm going to first ask

24

Lynn our operator what are we looking like with

25

respect to the numbers on WebEx?
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1

MS. KNIGHT:

2

THE JUDGE:

10.
10.

Okay.

So we

3

won't have to impose that five minutes.

4

reality, you know, it's helpful if it's organized

5

and as succinct as possible when you give your oral

6

comments.

7

How about on the phone, on InterCall?

8

MS. KNIGHT:

9

THE JUDGE:

10

But in all

Zero.
Oh.

Okay.

And we

know that InterCall is working?

11

MS. KNIGHT:

12

THE JUDGE:

Yep.
Okay.

All right.

And

13

like Mr. Burke explained that what he didn't get to

14

or some of the other details will be in his written

15

comments which I will link up when I draft my

16

report.

17

my notes and the transcript from his oral comments.

I will link up his written comments with

18

So, next, we turn to I believe Sam

19

Orbovich is next.

20

can start getting their thoughts organized?

21
22

And then who is on deck, so they

MS. KNIGHT:

After Sam, we have

Suzanne Scheller.

23

THE JUDGE:

24

get ready.

25

you into video here.

So Suzanne is going to

And, Mr. Orbovich, we are going to put
Let's make sure I can see
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1

you.

2
3

MR. ORBOVICH:

And can you hear

me, Your Honor?

4

THE JUDGE:

I can hear you.

Got

5

you right there.

6

Court Reporter, Susan, you will see in the far

7

left-hand corner they should have their name.

8

Obviously, I'm going to have everybody state and

9

spell their first and last name, but that might be

10

helpful to you so you can see it as you go on.

11
12

I'm going to ask, Susan, our

Okay.

Mr. Orbovich, if you can please

state and spell your first and last name.

13

MR. ORBOVICH:

Thank you, Your

14

Honor.

15

Orbovich.

16

O-r-b, as in boy, o-v, as in Victor, i-c-h.

17

with the law firm of Fredrikson & Byron and I

18

represent the Long-Term Care Imperative.

19

collaboration between Care Providers of Minnesota

20

and LeadingAge Minnesota.

21

uploaded a rulemaking comment and legal memorandum

22

to the Office of Administrative Hearings along with

23

Exhibit A.

24

registered under chapter 10 with the State Campaign

25

Finance and Public Disclosure Board.

It's good to see you again.
Sam is spelled S-a-m.

My name is Sam

Orbovich is
I'm

A

And on January 15 I

And to participate in this hearing I
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1

I have been representing senior service

2

providers in Minnesota since 1982.

And in addition

3

to providing legal advice and guidance I have

4

represented those providers and their professionals

5

before the Office of the Administrative Hearings,

6

federal, state and district appellate courts,

7

federal agencies and state licensing boards.

8

an active member of the first Vulnerable Adults Act

9

working group organized in 1994 by then Assistant

I was

10

Attorney General Skip Humphrey.

I also represent

11

community residential settings licensed under 245D,

12

which is important for this proceeding because

13

chapter 144G refers to and incorporates 245D's

14

person-centered provisions.
With respect to administrative law, I'm

15
16

the past chair of the Minnesota State Bar

17

Association's Administrative Law Governing Council

18

and I co-authored a chapter in the Third Edition of

19

Minnesota Administrative Procedure.
I have also appeared in rulemaking

20
21

hearings before on MDH's nursing home licensing

22

rules, DHS's rate setting rules, and surveillance

23

and integrity review sections post payment audit

24

rules.

25

I've also been a family member who has

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

42

1

relied on assisted living services.

2

spent the final six months of her life, roughly six

3

months in an assisted living facility in Columbus,

4

Ohio.

5

time home state of Indiana to Lakeville, Minnesota

6

where she spent the final year or so of her life.

7

Their experiences were positive and they deepened

8

my already considerable respect for the talents and

9

abilities of direct care professionals, their

10

My mother

And my mother-in-law moved from her long-

supervisors and assisted living facilities.

11

When you measure whether these proposed

12

rules pass the muster under the Administrative

13

Procedure Act, as my memorandum says, these rules

14

according to chapter 144G must promote person-

15

centered planning and service delivery.

16

14 subdivisions of 144G that make that exact

17

mandate.

18

parts and subparts of the rules in our 28-page

19

memorandum, I would like to limit those, my public

20

comments to just a very, very few.

21

There are

And although I have identified eight

First, the staffing rule, 4659.0180.

22

That rule and in most of its part as we say in our

23

memorandum is absolutely fine.

24

It is reasonable.

25

that require revision, though.

It is acceptable.

There are a couple of provisions
Subpart 4(B), as in
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1

boy, requires the posting of a daily work schedule

2

on each floor of the facility.

3

schedule is accessible not just to the people who

4

work in the assisted living facility, but in the

5

rule it has to be accessible to residents,

6

volunteers and the public, and on every area of

7

the -- every floor of the facility.

8
9

That daily work

There are a few things wrong with
this.

First of all, the statute does not require,

10

144G does not require a public display of the daily

11

workforce.

12

There are always people -- there will always be

13

situations where people call in sick or where a

14

resident may decide to leave the facility for a day

15

and spend the day with their family.

16

likely during these COVID precaution time periods,

17

but when we get back to normal that's the way that

18

will work.

19

may not be the most reliable way of recording who

20

was actually in the facility at any given point in

21

time.

22

Secondly, the day is never static.

That's less

And having a document out on the floor

We also point out in our memorandum

23

that you can give too much information to the

24

public and to the residents.

25

mother-in-law's stay in Lakeville there were direct

I learned from my
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1

care professionals she adored and loved.

And they

2

respected her and cared for her as well.

And if

3

she had a list that would tell her that they were

4

on the third floor that day and not the second

5

floor that day, she would be seeking them out and,

6

although she would not see it this way, interfering

7

with their assigned duties.

8

that.

9

There is no reason for

And there is also members of the public

10

that walk into any assisted living facility.

11

could be a vendor delivering food, it could be a

12

lawyer, it could be a member of the public visiting

13

to see -- this rule requires, quote, resident

14

assignments to be posted in the public.

15

person is receiving care in an assisted living

16

facility, their identity is protected health

17

information.

18

casually.

19

That

If a

And that shouldn't be treated

Contrary to Mr. Burke, who I give high

20

regard, I've known Mr. Burke for years, we see it

21

differently with respect to the 10-minute

22

requirement that is also in subpart 4(B) of

23

4659.0180.

24

time be as soon as possible.

25

home.

The statute requires that the response
This is not a nursing

This is not a hospital .

And by the way, in
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1

nursing homes and hospitals, to my knowledge, there

2

is no minimum response time required if there has

3

been a request.

4

needs to rely on their judgment and they need to

5

rely on the judgment of not only professionals but

6

the direct care staff.

7

These are situations where staff

There are circumstances where somebody

8

may not be able to reach a person in 12 minutes.

9

Perhaps because they are taking care of an emergent

10

situation down the hall or perhaps they know what

11

the person is requesting because they just left

12

that particular room.

13

If we change and move from a person-

14

centered assessment and assignment process to one

15

that requires certain kind of staffing ratios at

16

night or during the day, that is going to be

17

problematic, it's going to be contrary to the

18

statutory requirements for a person-centered

19

delivery, and it's going to create new costs.

20

we don't think that the State has established the

21

basis for that 10-minute requirement.

22

And

With respect to the next point I would

23

like to get to is emergency preparedness,

24

4659.0100.

25

Health has dealt with emergency preparedness is to

The way the Minnesota Department of
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1

incorporate by reference a 70-page document 40

2

pages of which -- roughly, 40 pages of which apply

3

to skilled nursing facilities, a document prepared

4

by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

5

and is a document that is comprehensive to include

6

I think up to 16 different kinds of Medicaid and

7

Medicare facilities, absolutely none of which are

8

assisted living facilities.

9

What we have proposed instead is

10

Exhibit A to our January 15 memorandum.

That was a

11

document that borrows the concepts of Appendix Z.

12

It was a document that was created by the Minnesota

13

Department of Health after meetings with

14

stakeholders, and it was a document that was

15

announced December 12, 2019.

16

Your Honor, I urge you to spend the

17

hour that it will take you to read these survey

18

protocols of Appendix Z and then the 15 minutes

19

that it will take you to read the six pages of

20

Exhibit A to our proposal which is the December 12,

21

2019, and you can clearly see that one is

22

manageable and implementable and the other is very

23

confusing.

In part, because it's not just the

24

standards.

It's the survey protocols for what

25

various state agencies and licensing agencies need
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1

to do to assure that those Appendix Z requirements

2

are in place.

3

Finally, Your Honor, I would like to

4

speak to terminations and discharges, 4659.0120.

5

Now the enabling legislation for this particular

6

provision is Minnesota Statutes 144G.52.

7

statute on the same subject matter.

8
9

The

As my memorandum suggests, these rule
additions are unnecessary.

This is the one part of

10

144G that is sufficiently detailed that it doesn't

11

require elaboration.

12

problems.

13

And the elaboration creates

Now, Your Honor, I have represented

14

community residential services settings in probably

15

15 to 25 of termination hearings within the course

16

of the last four years.

17

skilled nursing facilities in termination hearings.

18

The one thing that I have learned from those is the

19

faster you can get to an independent human services

20

judge or an independent administrative law judge

21

the better it is for all concerned.

22

assisted living facility terminations are a last

23

resort.

24

develop an assessment program, implement them,

25

integrate them into a community only to then

And I've also represented

Because in an

My clients do not take on an admission,
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1

decide, well, let's terminate them.

2

resort measures.

3

whether it's an ALJ or a human services judge

4

review the evidence, make a recommendation, that's

5

the way that everybody gets to yes faster.

6

These are last

And having the independent judge,

So the problem that we have with the

7

rule is that it adds additional days before my

8

clients can even issue a formal notice of

9

termination.

I know why it does it.

I mean,

10

obviously, everybody needs to talk about what is

11

about to happen.

12

needs to be a pre-termination meeting seven days

13

before the notice comes out.

14

that.

15

reading, the rule adds five days before that and

16

another day after the pre-termination meeting, and

17

the problem is that there appears to be a

18

difference in approach with the rule and the

19

statute.

20

terminations.

21

thwart terminations.

22

says you have to make reasonable efforts to ensure

23

that the resident and their representatives will be

24

present at that pre-termination hearing, that

25

becomes almost a guarantee under the rule, and

The statute provides that there

It's the statute.

And we can't change

The rule adds -- by my

The statute is designed to implement
The rule is designed with respect to
Because where the statute
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1

anybody that's non-compliant can simply just not

2

appear and there is nothing that the facility can

3

do about that under that rule.

4

Your Honor, I want to thank you very

5

much for the opportunity to speak here.

6

again reiterate that while I'm focused in on a few

7

issues where the Long-Term Care Collaborative has

8

-- or Imperative has a concern that these rules are

9

not reasonable, necessary or consistent with the

10

enabling legislation, the bulk of the rules do a

11

fine job and we thank the Minnesota Department of

12

Health and we thank the members of the panel and

13

Commissioner Malcolm.

14

Honor.

15

I would

Thank you very much, Your

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

Now we

16

will turn to the next speaker.

17

you could tell us who the next speaker is and who

18

is on deck to start getting ready to speak?

19

MS. KNIGHT:

20

Scheller is up next.

21

have Mary Jo George.

22

Operator Lynn, if

Absolutely.

Suzanne

And after Suzanne we will

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

So Mary Jo

23

will start getting ready and Suzanne we will get

24

her on video right now so I can see her.

25

hope everybody who is listening understands
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1

sometimes it's just easy so I don't butcher last

2

names if before I see your name pop up if I just

3

call you by your first name.

4

disrespectful.

5

name to be able to pronounce it it might be just

6

easier.

7

last name.

10

It's just because I can't see your

But once I see it, I will call you by your

8
9

It's not to be

So, Suzanne, are you having trouble?
Are you going to be on video or do you choose not
to?

11

MR. BAULEKE:

I've got Suzanne.

12

She has got her videocamera on.

13

see her until she is talking.

14

has audio issues, but she is a panelist right now.
THE JUDGE:

15
16

She's concerned she

Okay.

Suzanne, why

don't you speak so we can see you.

17
18

You probably won't

MS. SCHELLER:

Yes.

My name is

Suzanne Scheller.

19

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

20

see and hear you.

21

could please state and spell your first and last

22

name for us.

23

Thank you very much.

Now I can

MS. SCHELLER:

24

spelled S-u-z-a-n-n-e.

25

S-c-h-e-l-l-e-r.

Yes.

If you

My name is

And last name is spelled

Thank you, Your Honor, for the
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1

opportunity to comment on behalf of Elder Voice

2

Family Advocates.

3

exists to stop abuse, neglect and exploitation of

4

older and vulnerable adults in long-term care

5

settings.

6

attorney representing those who have been neglected

7

in long-term care facilities, among other practice

8

areas.

9

my heart.

Elder Voice Family Advocates

And I am also an elder abuse and neglect

So this is an area that is near and dear to
It is also near and dear to Elder Voice

10

Family Advocates, an organization that I helped

11

found particularly to lend an important voice to

12

discussions like this one, the voice of what people

13

are experiencing in the facilities from the

14

perspective of the resident and the family who is

15

supporting them.

16

all the voices lending themselves to this process,

17

because it is very critical and it is important to

18

remember why we are here.

19

And so we very much appreciate

In 2019, as has been referenced, the

20

assisted living licensure law was passed.

There

21

was a reason it was passed.

22

number of elders in our facilities, we have

23

increase in complex medical needs.

24

over the age of 85 in our assisted livings.

25

to 40 percent have dementia, among other complex

We have an increased

58 percent are
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1

needs.

2

There was a moratorium in Minnesota

3

with some exceptions on building nursing homes

4

starting in 1983 under Minnesota Statute 144A.071.

5

That is significant because we essentially said we

6

are going to keep our nursing home levels static

7

for the most part.

8

number of elders going.

They are going into our

9

assisted living models.

And so that is why our

And so where are the increased

10

complex medical needs have increased.

11

panel and Your Honor that we still have independent

12

and senior living models for those not needing the

13

level of services in the assisted living.

14

that's important to note.

15

approximately 2468 housing with services registered

16

buildings and close to 80 percent of those have

17

chosen an assisted living title protection in our

18

current law.

19

of residents represented by those numbers.

20

I remind the

And

We currently have

And so there are a significant number

MDH, I just want to make a note, they

21

conduct maltreatment investigations.

And in our

22

exhibits we have two exhibits.

23

to 2018 categorization of maltreatment complaints.

24

And of those 1733 complaints approximately 85

25

percent deal with some type of staffing issue and

One being the 2014
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1

70 percent deal with some type of training issue.

2

Those are two really critical areas that Elder

3

Voice wants to address.

4

one more comment.

And before I give that,

We believe the MDH has been given broad

5
6

authority under the Administrative Procedure Act,

7

chapter 14 and 144G.09, subdivision 3 to conduct

8

and compile these rules.

9

2013, home care licensure law was developed but no

Again, historically, in

10

corresponding rules.

11

important substantive add-on or supplementation to

12

our law under 144G.

13

supports the rules and that the Commissioner has

14

brought authority to develop them given their

15

knowledge of maltreatment investigations, surveys,

16

compliance and all of their work with the

17

facilities.

18

So this is really an

And we believe the SONAR

Turning to the specific rules, as I

19

mentioned.

I want to first note in definitions

20

under 4659.0020 under the definition of competency.

21

This is a concept throughout the rules and we

22

believe it's important to add some substance to

23

that definition, looking at things like successful

24

evaluations and proficiency performance evaluations

25

to ensure that our personnel are competent to
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1

serve, to provide the services.

2

THE JUDGE:

I don't mean to

3

interrupt.

4

saying which rule part you were talking about.

You broke up for me when you were

MS. SCHELLER:

5

So the definitions

6

in 4659.0020.

7

competency.

8

This is a critical rule for Elder Voice Family

9

Advocates.

And that would be subpart 11 on
I'm turning to the assessment rule.

A huge issue we have seen that has lead

10

to multiple instances of injury and neglect is not

11

having the proper assessment.

12

Your Honor to understand that there has not been

13

this robust requirement of an assessment prior to

14

admission.

15

law under 144G.

16

It is important for

And so this rule is a very important

We want to note in subpart 4 that our

17

RN assessments -- excuse me, that the clinical

18

nurse supervisor who is defined as an RN is the one

19

to conduct the assessments and reassessments.

20

There is feedback from the Minnesota Nurse Practice

21

Act under Minnesota Statute 148 that that be so.

22

And we want to highlight support that the RN

23

conduct the assessment and the reassessment under

24

law.

25

We want to note support for subparts 5
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1

and 6 of the assessment rule, given that there is a

2

limited exception to admit someone without the

3

preadmission assessment under very limited

4

circumstances.

5

consumer protections and support that the temporary

6

service plan is just that, temporary, and that the

7

resident retains their rights under law prior to

8

that assessment being performed.

9

It is important that we extend the

One last issue in the assessment rule

10

under subpart 7.

11

facility must be equipped to perform these

12

assessments on weekends and we added holidays.

13

Again, our comments come from member feedback of

14

what is actually happening in the facilities.

15

Weekends and holidays are a key time for things to

16

fall through the cracks related to the staff

17

knowing how best to serve the needs of a new admit.

18

Again, we support that the

I am moving to the uniform assessment

19

tool under Rule 4659.0150.

The Minnesota

20

Department of Health has asked each provider to

21

create the assessment tool.

22

consistency of this tool so that there would be

23

greater transparency and ability to know from

24

providers to residents what this assessment will

25

cover.

We advocated for

That has been left to the provider.
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1

highlighted some important additions we believe

2

should go on that assessment tool.

3

I'm moving to the staffing rule,

4

another critical rule for residents, 4659.0180.

5

And I want to highlight under -- this is a general

6

comment for the entire staffing rule that again we

7

have the LPN operating under the supervision of the

8

RN, and we would support that the RN develops the

9

plan of care and we would add references to the

10

Nurse Practice Act.

11

statutory references here that inform these rules.

12

I would add that on subpart 4 the RN needs to

13

create the staffing schedule.

14

and trained to combine the assessments and the

15

acuity needs of the residents with how many and the

16

level of training a particular staff person may

17

need to account for the particular resident's need.

18

Again, person-centered.

19

Again, we have companion

They are equipped

I will note in response to Mr.

20

Orbovich's comments that the posting is critical.

21

This is critical from a transparency perspective,

22

from a guidance perspective.

23

who relay had I known that this particular

24

temporary staff worker or they may have been short

25

staffed on a shift, they may have provided

We often have members
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1

additional instruction, they may have provided

2

additional input or monitoring, quite honestly.

3

The need, and it is a need, to get into temporary

4

staff or to have staff around is important for the

5

provider.

6

resident who is operating under a delicate and

7

vulnerable balance to be best equipped to know how

8

to support their loved one and their own health and

9

safety.

But it is also important for the

That's why the posting is important.

10

we presume providers know how to do so without

11

violating protected health information.

12

And

We also support under the staffing rule

13

in subpart 6, as has been discussed, the minute

14

requirement for the night hours.

15

support for the day hours as well.

16

it's important for Your Honor to realize this comes

17

back to need and reasonableness based on knowledge.

18

We have substantiated neglect, we have violations

19

of statutes, we have data that shows many times the

20

delay in response to a call light at night is 30,

21

45, 60 minutes.

22

simply turning off the button and walking away and

23

the next thing you know the resident is found

24

deceased on the floor.

25

points of data that go into this language.

And we would
And, again,

We have reports of staff members

These are not insignificant

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

And so

58

1

we support the need for response in a timely manner

2

and support the 10-minute response time.

3

you.

Night and day.

4

Thank

Thank you.

I will go to 4659.0190 on training.

5

believe in subpart 1 that it is important to

6

highlight the need for training for temporary

7

workers.

8

Quite frequently.

9

should be coming to the facility with a level of

We

This model is utilized quite frequently.
And while the temporary worker

10

training as a CNA, a nurse aide, a certified nurse

11

assistant, for instance, a licensed practical nurse

12

or a registered nurse, they need orientation to the

13

building site, to where the policies and procedures

14

are and to the resident's care plan.

15

asking in subpart 1 for additional language

16

specific to the need to orient to site and resident

17

for those temporary workers.

18

THE JUDGE:

19

gave the particular rule.

21

You cut out when you

Can you state that rule?

MS. SCHELLER:

20

So we are

Subpart 1 of

4659.0190 on training.

22

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

23

MS. SCHELLER:

Certainly, Your

24

Honor.

I'm moving to subpart 4 which relates back

25

to the desire for greater definition on competency
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1

by adding staff competency in subpart 4 with some

2

-- with two points.

3

unlicensed personnel who are operating under the

4

delegation of a licensed personnel like a

5

registered nurse, and temporary personnel must

6

complete the competency evaluation and that it

7

would include some type of skills test.

8
9

That all personnel, including

My final comments are simply that in
relation to the termination procedures and Mr.

10

Orbovich's comments, which I appreciate.

This

11

termination and discharge again is one of the top

12

priorities of assisted living licensure.

13

Currently, the resident can be terminated fairly

14

easily, fairly quickly, fairly swiftly.

15

talking about the need to place a perhaps advanced

16

-- a resident with advanced dementia in a new

17

setting.

18

so what we are hearing from members is the ready

19

termination of services or housing that really

20

causes decline and may lead to serious

21

consequences.

22

to the pre-termination meeting is critical to allow

23

the resident in the family to cure any deficiency.

24

Whether that's payment not received, whether that's

25

additional services that may be needed that they

And we are

These have significant implications.

And

So these rules in 4659.0120 related
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1

can hire in on their own.

That is seen as very

2

important to the process of knowing why an action

3

is going to be made.

4

4659.0210 on appeal also has critical timelines in

5

there not in statute of 30 days and 15 days on

6

appeals, time for appeals of termination notices.

7

So not everything is in the statute.

8

have substance in the rules.

9

for.

I will note that .0210 or

We need to

This is what they are

They are important to guide, they are

10

important for transparency, and they are important

11

for MDH to follow up on.

12

I thank you so much for the opportunity

13

and will continue to try to provide input and help

14

with this particular process.
THE JUDGE:

15

Thank you.
Before you go, though,

16

let me just make clear, because -- I'm going to go

17

back in my notes.

18

pretty fast writer, but I can't keep up that well

19

and I haven't read all of the comments prior to

20

coming here today because they are still coming in.

21

I kind of wait until -- so the first thing you were

22

talking about was Rule -- and I'm just going to put

23

the last four -- .0020, and that's definitions.

24

You talked about subpart 11, competency, right?

25

I try to write fast, and I'm a

MS. SCHELLER:

Yes.
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1

THE JUDGE:

And then I have

2

subpart 4, clinical nurse supervisors conducting

3

assessments and reassessments.

4
5

MS. SCHELLER:

THE JUDGE:

7

MS. SCHELLER:

8

THE JUDGE:
and 6.

Okay.

Yes, Your Honor.

Next was subparts 5

MS. SCHELLER:

The same rule.

.0140.

12
13

0140.

What rule?

10
11

That was in

4659.0140 as to assessments.

6

9

What rule?

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

And that has to

do with support --

14

MR. SCHELLER:

15

THE JUDGE:

Assessments.

Assessments.

Okay.

16

And then subpart 7.

17

weekends and holidays you were talking about.

18

that's still .0140; is that correct?

19
20

Again, this has to deal with

MS. SCHELLER:

That's correct,

Your Honor.

21

THE JUDGE:

22

.0150, assessment tool.

23

the staffing rule.

24

is response time.

25

And

Okay.

Then we turn to

Next, we went to .0180,

Then we turn to subpart 6 which
Which rule is that again?

MS. SCHELLER:

That's under
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1

staffing, .0180.

2

THE JUDGE:

It is under staffing.

3

Okay.

4

LPNs and RNs and then you went to subpart 6

5

regarding response time.

Because you gave a general comment about

6
7

Then the next area you went to was
.0190, subpart 1 related to training.

8

MS. SCHELLER:

9

THE JUDGE:

10

4, staff competency?

Yes, Your Honor.

Next is .0190, subpart

Is that right?

11

MS. SCHELLER:

12

THE JUDGE:

Yes, Your Honor.

Finally, we turn to

13

.020, the termination and discharge.

14

looked -- as an example you said .0210.

15

MS. SCHELLER:

16

THE JUDGE:

17

MS. SCHELLER:

And then you

Yes, Your Honor.

You referenced that?
Yes, Your Honor.

18

That's a good clarification.

19

different rules in there.

20

the appeals.

21

pre-termination notice.

22

subject, but they are in different areas.

23

There is actually two

And the .0210 related to

And the .0120 related to the
So they both deal with the

THE JUDGE:

Got it.

Thank you.

24

just want to make sure.

And I'm letting all the

25

other commenters know that it really helps me,
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1

because we are in this virtual environment

2

sometimes things cut out, so I apologize for

3

interrupting, but sometimes we have to to make sure

4

that the record is clear.

5

helpful if you slowly give me the specific rule and

6

then subpart that you are talking about.

7

just the subpart, but also the rule itself.

8

good.

MS. SCHELLER:

Very

Thank you, Your

Honor.

11
12

So not

Thank you very much, Ms. Scheller.

9
10

And that is really

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

Madam operator,

who is next up?

13

MS. KNIGHT:

14

up next Mary Jo George.

15

going to have Josh Berg.

16

All right.

We have

And after Mary Jo we are

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

So Josh

17

will start getting ready and Mary Jo will come up

18

and get her video on so I can see her.

19

for -- Mary Jo, can I hear you?

20
21

MS. GEORGE:

Can you unmute me?

I'm trying to unmute.

22

THE JUDGE:

23

are unmuted.

24

you see me?

25

Question

I can hear you.

Mary Joe, I've got a question.

MS. GEORGE:

Yes.
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1

THE JUDGE:
I can see you.

That's good.

So you

2

can see me.

3

state your first and last name and spell it.

4

And let's have you

MS. GEORGIA:

Good morning.

My

5

name is Mary Jo George with AARP Minnesota and I'm

6

the associate state director of advocacy.

7

Thank you, Your Honor, for the

8

opportunity to testify on the proposed rules

9

governing assisted living licensure.

AARP has also

10

submitted detailed written comments for your

11

consideration as well.

12
13
14

THE JUDGE:
Okay.

Slow down, please.

Very good.
MS. GEORGIA:

Very good.

AARP is

15

the nation's largest nonprofit, nonpartisan

16

organization dedicated to improving the quality of

17

care of residents in long-term care.

18

a key stakeholder in advocating for the 2019 Elder

19

Care and Vulnerable Adult Protection Act in

20

response to widespread complaints of abuse as well

21

as the promulgation of these rules.

22

AARP has been

Today it is within this context and in

23

the midst of a pandemic that AARP believes it's

24

critically important for these rules to provide

25

specific details on how the law will operate and be
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1

enforced to protect residents in assisted living

2

facilities.

3

The continuing coronavirus crisis

4

spotlights the life and death need for fundamental

5

reforms.

6

891 assisted living facilities had an active COVID

7

outbreak and nearly 1000 residents have died from

8

the virus.

9

proposed rules on emergency preparedness and

10

uniform assessment, as well as the discharge

11

protections, with the addition of some clarifying

12

amendments that we speak to in our letter.

13

However, we believe the proposed rules on staffing,

14

uniform disclosure of services, ongoing assessments

15

and variance must be strengthened and enhanced to

16

comport with the statute.

17

the focus of my testimony today.

18

Recent data as of January 24 shows that

To that end, AARP strongly supports the

And these rules will be

Let me first begin with the staffing

19

rule, which is .0180.

Staffing is one of the most

20

important aspects of improving quality of care.

21

Many of our concerns from our members are about

22

insufficient staffing.

23

understaffing contributes to serious care

24

violations, including abuse and neglect.

25

addition, the SONAR also showed that insufficient

Research shows that
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1

staffing has lead to substantial increases in the

2

number of maltreatment complaints to the Department

3

of Health.

4

in the rule, subpart 6 in the staffing plan that

5

does require two direct care staff be available for

6

residents who require that level of care and the

7

10-minute timeframe for staff to respond to a

8

resident's request in the evening.

9

have heard from other testifiers today on this.

Thus, AARP strongly supports provisions

And I know you

We believe these minimum requirements

10
11

can ensure that staffing levels will address the

12

needs of residents in the evening and higher acuity

13

residents.

14

very little additional specificity and references

15

to certain statutory sections which we believe can

16

create ambiguity between the rule and statute.

17

However, as written, the rule provides

For example, the rule does not address

18

what is needed in the plan for the provider to

19

demonstrate to MDH that its staffing levels meet

20

the requirements of the law under 144G.41 and

21

whether the facility is providing the appropriate

22

number and type of staff needed to meet the

23

scheduled and unscheduled needs of each resident.

24

This is the detail that we were talking about in

25

subpart 3 of that rule.
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In our written comments we have

2

outlined for you, Your Honor, some of the omissions

3

that we believe need to be inserted.

4

some of this is distinguishing between a licensed

5

and unlicensed staff, clarification of the role of

6

the RN and whether they are on site and what on

7

call means, identification of staff who is

8

available 24 hours a day and awake and

9

documentation of requirements for staff training

For example,

10

and competencies among the issues that we have

11

identified.

12

Finally, as Sean Burke had testified,

13

we are concerned that the proposed rules lack

14

enforcement mechanisms.

15

mechanisms and details to avoid ambiguity between

16

the rule and statute.

17

commissioner of health should enforce the staffing

18

plans and the assisted living director should be

19

jointly accountable with the clinical nurse

20

supervisor for ensuring the plan meets the

21

resident's needs.

22

the director and the facility licenseholder could

23

be shielded from liability issues.

24
25

We suggest incorporating

AARP believes the

Without this, we are concerned

Second, we would like to address the
uniform checklist disclosure of services.
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1

Rule .0090.

2

include as part of this rule the proposed template

3

for the uniform checklist that details the services

4

and policies that a facility may choose to offer.

5

We are concerned that as stated in the SONAR that a

6

facility can remove a service at any time before

7

notifying a resident of that change.

8

must be amended.

9

difficult decision to leave their home, the myriad

10

of residential options can be overwhelming, and so

11

we believe prospective residents and families need

12

a uniform checklist to make comparable decisions

13

from facility to facility.

14

AARP believes the department should

We think that

For older persons making a

Third, with regard to the proposed rule

15

on initial and continuing assessments.

16

0140.

17

missing in this proposed rule.

18

change of a resident's condition, resident's

19

participation and ongoing assessments as well as

20

requirements for written policies to ensure that

21

the resident monitoring is implemented 24 hours a

22

day.

23

detail on that.

24
25

That's Rule

AARP believes key and important details are
These include the

And we would refer you to our letter for more

And, finally, AARP would like to
address the issue of the variance rule.

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

This is

69

1

.0080.

We believe this rule goes beyond the

2

statutory authority which was intended to only

3

permit variances to allow assisted living

4

facilities to offer innovative services.

5

very least, we urge that the proposed rule be

6

amended to require that variances be time limited

7

rather than indefinite.

8

of this rule, we believe the term "undue burden"

9

should be defined and that the provider must prove

At the

In addition, in subpart 2

10

to the commissioner by clear and convincing

11

evidence that the variance is necessary because of

12

an undue burden.

13

Finally, the rule should be amended to

14

require public comment opportunities when the

15

commissioner is considering a variance and notice

16

to the Office of Long-Term Care Ombudsman when the

17

variance is granted.

18

In conclusion, we want to thank you

19

again for the opportunity to testify and are happy

20

to answer any questions you have.

21

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

Thank you.

I'm catching up here.

Okay.

One

22

moment.

Now, I write

23

fast and furious, but I usually can't write super

24

as fast as people speak.

25

please keep -- I didn't want to interrupt, because

So just notice, everyone,
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1

I have your written comments and I can refer to

2

those, too, and when I feel I can fill in the gaps

3

no problem.

4

me write as fast as I can.

5

Court Reporter who is typing as fast as she can.

6

Thank you, Ms. George.

7

-- well, first, I'm going to ask madam operator

8

Lynn, we have Josh Berg is next, but who is on deck

9

after him?

And it also helps our

I appreciate it.

MS. KNIGHT:

10
11

But everybody just slow down and let

Next up

After Josh Berg, we

are going to have Shauna Kapsner.

12

THE JUDGE:

And how many people do

13

we have in queue, just so everybody can kind of

14

know where they are at and what kind of timeframes

15

we are looking at?

16
17

MS. KNIGHT:

Including Josh and

Shauna, we have eight people on the list.

18

THE JUDGE:

All right.

Our plan

19

was to take a noon, around noon or whatever works

20

best, break.

21

because our Court Reporter needs a break every

22

hour, hour and a half to rest up her fingers, but

23

it depends on how many people we have left in the

24

queue when we get to the noon hour to see if maybe

25

we will push lunch back just a little bit.

Either way, we are going to do that,
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1

if we only have one or two people, I don't want

2

them to have to wait for an hour-long lunch hour.

3

I also should note that this hearing it

4

ends upon the last speaker or the last person

5

present.

6

there is nobody on the phones, nobody on WebEx, we

7

end the hearing for today and we start fresh in the

8

morning.

9

So if we get to 3:00 in the afternoon and

So I just want everybody to be aware.
So let's turn now to Mr. Berg.

And

10

Shauna Kapsner will start to get her thoughts put

11

together and be ready next.

12

please have you speak, because that's the only way

13

I can hear you -- see you.

14
15

MR. BERG:

So, Mr. Berg, if I can

Good morning.

Can you

hear me and see me?

16

THE JUDGE:

I can hear and see you

17

now.

18

state and spell your first and last name, sir.

Thank you very much.

19

MR. BERG:
J-o-s-h B-e-r-g.

If you could please

Yes, my name is Josh

20

Berg.

Thank you for allowing me

21

to participate in this generational legislative

22

rulemaking process.

23

Berg.

24

organization called Lifesprk.

25

L-i-f-e-s-p-r-k.

As I stated, my name is Josh

I proudly work for a Minnesota-based
And that's
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1

Lifesprk, the leader in whole-person

2

senior services, is driving transformational change

3

in the senior services industry in Minnesota and

4

beyond with integrated whole person-centric home

5

and community based services.

6

has been breaking down the current sick care system

7

while investing in our value-based, tech-enabled

8

alternative delivery system, because we know a

9

better life experience is created when all the

Our driving force

10

elements of well-being align to help seniors age

11

magnificently.

12

Today, I would like to provide brief

13

general comments on just a few aspects of the

14

proposed rule.

15

comments along with several others on behalf of

16

Lifesprk following this testimony and will be happy

17

to answer any questions and/or provide

18

clarification now or in the weeks ahead.

I will also be submitting these

19

Quickly, before I get into the details

20

of these comments, I wanted to provide information

21

about my background and experience as it relates to

22

this discussion.

23

career to working in organizations providing human

24

and social services.

25

leadership roles for organizations serving children

I have dedicated my professional

I have been in operational
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1

with autism, adults with physical, intellectual and

2

developmental disabilities as well as brain

3

injuries, community residential settings, a/k/a

4

group homes, intermediate care facilities, in-home

5

services, as well as overseeing and managing dozens

6

of housing with services, assisted living and

7

senior living communities across Minnesota and

8

other states.

9

I was also the home care and assisted

10

living program manager at the Minnesota Department

11

of Health from 2013 to 2016 and helped to build

12

launch and establish the home care and assisted

13

living program within the health regulation

14

division.

15

and/or supervised the team of individuals making up

16

the program, including surveyors, licensing and

17

enforcement and other administrative staff.

I directly and indirectly hired, trained

18

The foundation for the proposed rules

19

before us today as well as the language passed in

20

2019 and found in Minnesota Statutes, section 144G

21

can be traced directly to the home care laws that I

22

and my section helped roll out and implement.

23

And, finally, in addition to my current

24

role at Lifesprk, I am a city council member in

25

Elko New Market, a member of the Governor's
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1

workforce development board, active on several

2

other county and state boards and commissions and a

3

newly hired adjunct faculty member at the

4

University of Minnesota.

5

course this semester on management in assisted

6

living and senior care settings.

7

once the rules are fully adopted fulfill one of the

8

required components for individuals seeking to

9

become a licensed assisted living director which is

I will be teaching a new

This course will

10

overseen by the board of executives for long-term

11

care services and support which is now required

12

under the new assisted living licensure law.

13

Let's turn to our brief comments.

14

First, we want to express our support for the

15

general direction and many of the components of the

16

proposed rules.

17

hundreds of hours of work and significant

18

compromises made between the various stakeholders

19

throughout this process and commend the department

20

for pulling these rules together in such an

21

abbreviated timeline.

22

We acknowledge and appreciate the

With that said, there are several areas

23

we would like to highlight today.

I won't go into

24

detail on the specifics, as these are outlined in

25

our written comments, but generally they are as
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1

follows.

In regards to staffing, and the rule is

2

4659.0180, the proposed rule is reasonable and does

3

a relatively good job of balancing improved

4

oversight and expectations with generally a person-

5

centered approach that is central to Minnesota's

6

expectations in regards to assisted living

7

regulation.

8

and wishes of residents and staff experiences may

9

vary and entrust the expertise of a clinical nurse

This approach recognizes that needs

10

supervisor to ensure appropriate person-centered

11

staffing.

12

I would oppose an alternative approach

13

that may be suggested by some that would impose a

14

strict staffing ratio.

15

we believe that the needs of residents go far

16

beyond the health and medical needs of an

17

individual.

18

that the absolute focus of our work keeps the

19

individual at the center of it all.

20

ratios based simply on a number of staff to a

21

number of residents is not only arbitrary, but it

22

is another perpetuation of the broken system that

23

dominates health care today.

24

less staffing based on useless metrics is wasteful,

25

will not improve quality and directly contradicts

Furthermore, at Lifesprk,

We are transforming senior living so

Staffing

Requiring more or
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1

arguments to allow for, encourage and require a

2

whole-person approach to supporting an individual.

3

While many of the sections related to

4

staffing are person-centered in their approach, one

5

that is not is located in subpart 6 of this same

6

section related to night supervision and the 10-

7

minute response time.

8

and capricious in nature, assumes that all

9

residents living in assisted living have been

This rule, being arbitrary

10

assessed for, need, and desire a response within

11

that period of time.

12

situation where simply travel time from an office

13

to an elevator and to the person's apartment may

14

place a provider out of compliance.

15

this random 10-minute rule based on California's

16

regulations which reflect a completely different

17

assisted living residential care setting

18

environment altogether is not reasonable, not

19

needed and not justified.

Furthermore, it sets up the

Quite simply,

20

Finally, I want to reiterate the

21

absolute inappropriateness of the posting of

22

staffing and resident assignment schedules in an

23

assisted living --

24
25

THE JUDGE:
Mr. Berg.

Hold one moment,

Just a second, I think we just --
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somebody was unmuted for a second there and so I'm

2

going to have you go back to -- you were talking

3

about the response time but then you jumped into

4

the new rule and I lost you for a second.

5

you could jump into the next part and identify it

6

for me.

7

MR. BERG:

Absolutely.

So if

So

8

finishing up with the response time being not

9

reasonable, not needed and not justified.

And then

10

in subpart 4 of that same section I wanted to

11

highlight the inappropriateness of posting of the

12

staffing and resident assignment schedules in

13

assisted living and it being a direct violation of

14

an individual's privacy and rights.

15

are a person's home.

16

served in these settings wish to not share with

17

others that they receive services at all and would

18

not want this information posted for strangers,

19

their neighbors, et cetera to see without

20

restriction.

21

These settings

Many of the individuals

This is reiterated and clear in

22

Minnesota Statute, section 144G.91, subdivision 13

23

and subdivision 15, the Assisted Living Bill of

24

Rights, which state that residents have the right

25

to respect and privacy regarding the resident's
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service plan.

2

examination and treatment are confidential and must

3

be conducted discretely.

4

to have personal, financial, health and medical

5

information kept private and to approve or refuse

6

release of information to any outside party.

7

Case discussion, consultation,

Residents have the right

I'm going to move on quickly to the

8

emergency preparedness and planning section.

9

this is in Rule 4659.0100.

And

Unfortunately, at some

10

point between December of 2019 and December of 2020

11

MDH decided to abandon the draft of this section

12

that was developed, agreed to by all stakeholders

13

including AARP, the Ombudsman, Elder Voices Family

14

Advocates, et cetera and publically posted in

15

relation to emergency preparedness and planning.

16

A significant amount of work and effort

17

were put into this section and borrowed pieces of

18

federal emergency preparedness regulations and

19

Appendix Z while ensuring that it was person-

20

centered in its approach and tailored it to comply

21

with the home and community based nature of these

22

settings.

23

The MDH published working draft dated

24

December 12, 2019 was a seriously considered

25

alternative to the approach taken in the proposed
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1

rules, but no explanation was made in the SONAR as

2

to why this was thrown out.

3

Appendix Z is meant to regulate institutional and

4

acute care settings like hospitals, skilled nursing

5

facility, et cetera, again not discussed in the

6

SONAR and that Appendix Z is not manageable,

7

scaleable or applicable to home and community-based

8

settings like assisted living, again not discussed

9

in the SONAR.

Forget the fact that

MDH's approach of merely referencing

10

an entire section of federal regulations means that

11

the future changes that are made by CMS which by

12

definition will with certainty not take into

13

account assisted living communities, as they are

14

not considered a part of this section of federal

15

regulation, will be applied to Minnesota's rules

16

governing assisted living without any

17

responsibility of MDH to revisit the rulemaking

18

process.

19

unintentional sidestepping of future

20

responsibilities and should not be permitted.

21

This appears to be an intentional or

Lastly, I just want to touch on the

22

termination procedure section.

This is Rule

23

4659.0210.

24

placed on developing and defending the termination

25

procedures MDH outlined in the proposed rules and

It appears significant effort was
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Unfortunately, several of the components

1

SONAR.

2

detailed in the proposed rules conflict with and do

3

not add any reasonable and needed clarification

4

that is not already outlined in the robust and

5

detailed portions already in Minnesota Statute

6

section 144G.

7

I will not be providing additional

8

detail at this time, but it will be in my written

9

comments.

I just want to add that service

10

terminations, as Sam noted in his testimony, are an

11

absolute last resort of an assisted living

12

organization.

13

the creative attempts to work with residents, their

14

families, the ombudsman, et cetera that could have

15

easily met the current standard of issuing a

16

service termination, but because of the nature of

17

our work and the passion that we all possess to

18

serve, support and help individuals to age

19

magnificently, we tend to err on the side of doing

20

whatever we can to prevent the discharge from

21

happening.

22

this proposed rule are not necessary, needed or

23

justified.

24
25

Many of us have story after story of

The additional requirements added to

Thank you again for allowing me to
participate in this hearing today.

And please
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1

accept these general comments made on behalf of

2

Lifesprk and take into consideration our written

3

comments to be submitted shortly.

Thank you.

4

THE JUDGE:

5

And when you said Lifesprk, it's exactly as it

6

sounds, L-i-f-e and S-p-a-r-k?

7
8

MR. BERG:

Thank you very much.

Is that right?

Minus the A.

L-i-f-e-s-p-r-k.

9

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

10

back and change my note.

11

you had accidently left that out.

12

A.

13
14
15

I added the A, thinking

MR. BERG:

No.

It's just capital

L and then the rest are lowercase.
THE JUDGE:

Oh.

Thank you for that clarification.

17

very much, Mr. Berg.

18

to next have Shauna Kapsner.

19

person up on deck?

21

So there is no

So is s-p-r-k all capped or not?

16

20

So let me go

Okay.
Okay.

Very good.
Thank you

Operator Lynn, we are going

MS. KNIGHT:

And who is the next

After Shauna, we are

going to have Dawn Kuzma.

22

THE JUDGE:

23

Ms. Kapsner, if I could please have you start

24

speaking, then I can see you.

25

MS. KAPSNER:

Okay.

So,

My name is Shauna
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1

Kapsner from Partners Senior Living Options.

2

THE JUDGE:

3

you.

4

and last name.

If you can please state and spell your first

5
6

MS. KAPSNER:

Shauna, S-h-a-u-n-a.

Kapsner, K-a-p-s-n-e-r.

7
8

Now I can see and hear

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

Please

proceed.

9

MS. KAPSNER:

Thank you, Your

10

Honor, for the opportunity to speak today.

11

Shauna Kapsner and I'm director of operations for

12

Partners Senior Living Options.

13
14

THE JUDGE:
up.

I'm

I'm sorry, you broke

For what?
MS. KAPSNER:

15

For Partners Senior

16

Living Options.

17

manages nursing homes, assisted living and

18

developmentally delayed sites throughout the state

19

of Minnesota.

20

locations and smaller settings.

21

setting policies for the assisted living and

22

developmentally delayed sites and ensuring our

23

systems of operations both meet and typically

24

exceed state requirements.

25

We are a management company that

Usually out state and rural
And my role is

My health care career started in --
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1

just starting my 13th year.

And I do have personal

2

ownership in a few locations as well.

3

wrapped up six years sitting on the Care Providers

4

of Minnesota board of directors.

5

their legislative forum for 12 years.

6

quality council.

7

being an American Health Care Association examiner

8

for elder-based long-term care quality award

9

program at both the silver and gold levels.

I just

I've been on
I'm on their

I'm starting my fifth year of

And I

10

just started my term on their board of overseers

11

for this quality award program January 1.

12

So I would like to address a few areas

13

of concern regarding the proposed rules for

14

assisted living.

15

regards to emergency preparation.

16

4659.0100.

17

Appendix Z by the Center for Medicare and Medicare

18

Services.

19

being a non-institutionalized setting and Appendix

20

Z is all about institutionalized settings, so I'm a

21

little bit perplexed as to why Minnesota would want

22

to institutionalize something that we want to try

23

to keep non-institutionalized.

24
25

And my first comment is in
And that is Rule

The application is what's known as

So assisted living originally started by

I would also like to point out that
assisted living sites range in size from as small
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1

as four units all the way up to a few hundred

2

units.

3

something like this to a smaller provider, it's

4

very burdensome.

5

costs were just released this morning and attorney

6

Jeff Skaar had just testified this morning the

7

costs ranging between 5000 and $25,000, a small

8

provider of four even up to 25 units could not

9

handle an expenditure of $25,000 in one year to

So when we are looking at applying

Very burdensome.

And even though

10

implement this.

11

that it would be very difficult and really looking

12

at some of the financial burdens in that our sites

13

right now range from 10 to 7 units, and as of this

14

time we do not discriminate admissions based on

15

payer source.

16

probably force us to discriminate admissions based

17

on payer source.

18

services and -- those costs don't cover our

19

expenditures.

20

always subsidizing those costs.

21

private pay rates to the point that it would take

22

to cover those expenses, some of these sites are

23

not going to make it.

24

doable.

25

So it's very concerning not only

However, something like this would

Because presently Medicaid

And our private pay residents are
So to increase our

They are just not.

It's not

Also, timeline for implementation of
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1

something like Appendix Z for a provider is -- I

2

know when it was first implemented for a skilled

3

nursing home they had a year to implement it.

4

we are now talking about maybe four months for us

5

to implement this during a pandemic.

6

a really hard time with that as well and it needs

7

to be taken into consideration.

8
9

And

And so I have

The financial status of the profession
as a whole, the American Health Care Association

10

did a poll in the last month about assisted living

11

providers in specific.

12

did, are you still going to be able to provide

13

services.

14

country.

15

adding an expenditure of $25,000 onto care, I think

16

you are going to see more than 30 percent say no,

17

we are not going to it.

And if 2021 goes as 2020

And, granted, this was across the
But 50 percent of providers said no.

18

So

It's a big deal.

Do I think providers can do more for

19

emergency preparedness?

20

do.

21

the answer.

22

that was already drafted in coordination with the

23

Department of Health we looked at again from

24

December '19.

25

Yes.

And our locations

However, sticking Appendix Z into this is not
And I will propose that the compromise

My second concern is in regard to
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1

staffing.

2

would like to first start by saying thank you for

3

leaving statutes out -- I'm sorry, not statutes,

4

but staffing ratios out of this proposal.

5

ratios do not solve a concern when we are looking

6

at resident specific care plans.

7

a care level and time calculations to ensure our

8

buildings are staffed appropriate to meet resident

9

needs.

10

And that rule number is 4659.0180.

I

Because

Our locations use

And ratios wouldn't equate to care and

attention and don't promote person-centered care.

11

I do have concerns about posting

12

requirements.

13

handled by the RN.

14

sometimes by the minute in our world today and we

15

are setting up for failure in this regard.

16

needs to be a different way.

17

the public posting of protected information

18

regarding HIPAA as well as the Minnesota Bill of

19

Rights and protected personal health information

20

that was just referenced by Josh Berg.

21

It's something that's not always
There is changes that happen

I have concerns about

And my last concern regarding staffing

22

is the 10-minute call response time.

23

for normal.

24

there isn't a provider that --

25

There

And we staff

And we can't staff for crazy.

THE JUDGE:

And

Okay, I'm going to
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1

have you back up to this last point.

2

keep, I don't say breaking up.

3

interfering.

4

sitting in front of you that's hitting your

5

computer.

6

interference.

7

Reporter are having difficulty hearing you.

8

let's start with that third point again.

9

Because you

Something is

I don't know if there is something

Something that's causing an
And so both me and the Court

MS. KAPSNER:

Okay.

So

That was in

10

regards to posting.

So I have a challenge with the

11

posting requirements of the rule itself.

12

because of HIPAA, but also because the Minnesota

13

Bill of Rights as referenced by Josh Berg in his

14

testimony a few minutes ago.

Not just

The last concern I have regarding

15
16

staffing is specific to the 10-minute call response

17

time.

18

The bottom line is the building staffs for normal,

19

not for crazy or emergency situations, because we

20

aren't a hospital.

21

the 10 minutes cannot happen, and it's not -- it's

22

very rare in our buildings, but it's still there,

23

and I don't think that those rare occasions should

24

warrant punitary effects.

25

And there seems to be an arbitrary number.

And there are reasons that

My last concern is in regards to
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1

terminations.

And that rule number is 4659.0120.

2

And I would like to preface my concerns with the

3

fact that terminations are not good business

4

practice for any provider.

5

to turn over a unit and admit another resident.

6

And with our locations terminations are very rare,

7

but are increasingly an issue due to nonpayment and

8

safety concerns of other vulnerable adults we are

9

charged with protecting under our care.

It takes a lot of work

In our sites, the discharge level due

10
11

to level of care is most common.

12

skilled nursing homes and we are not hospitals.

13

This is frequent and happens for safety of our

14

residents and our staff.

15

termination section is problematic for many

16

reasons.

17

process is longer than what a skilled nursing home

18

needs to implement themselves, and it's overly

19

cumbersome and burdensome.

20

it's not clear if the same process is required if

21

our resident gives a provider notice to leave.

22

there needs to be clarity on what happens from that

23

perspective.

24
25

We are not

Application of this

And the first is how long it is.

This

And this process is --

So

What happens if a resident changes
their representative repeatedly?

Does this process
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1

have to start over again?

What happens if nobody

2

ever shows up?

3

to say, you know, well, these are things that will

4

definitely happen and that's why I'm bringing them

5

up.

6

that have the standpoint of, well, what are you

7

going to do?

8

What can you make me do?

9

so this has to be answered effectively.

These aren't something that I pose

There are residents, there are family members

I just won't show and then what?
We see it every day.

And

10

Termination for nonpayment.

Our sites send monthly

11

invoices due, for past amounts due.

12

is late, calls are made.

13

phone calls, letters, e-mails.

14

scheduled.

15

times they aren't.

16

reasonable plan of payment that our residents and

17

families can make to make their account come up and

18

be current.

19

And, you know, at some point enough is enough and

20

we can't be expected to carry five, six, seven

21

months of nonpayment on our books.

22

to pay, we have staff to pay, we have to buy food

23

for our residents.

24

somebody is not paying their bill.

25

be an end to not being paid for our services.

If one payment

We are following up for
Meetings are

Sometimes they are ignored.

Other

Our goal is always to set a

That is our goal always as a provider.

We have bills

That doesn't end because
There needs to
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1

this process is very long and doesn't address it

2

effectively.

3

It's rare that terminations occur due

4

to violent behavior of one resident to another

5

resident or even our staff.

6

does occur, a nine-step process isn't going to get

7

it done.

8

charged to protect is at risk and as well as my

9

staff.

However, when this

The safety of my residents that I'm

And I'm charged to have a safe work

10

environment for my staff.

11

process that is going to honor that effectively.

12

And I don't think this step process does.

13

think it's in direct competition to the Vulnerable

14

Adults Act statute which is 626.557.

15

be some way to address this effectively.

16

now there is not.

17

I need to have a step

And I

There has to
And right

When there is terminations due to level

18

of care, this is my real greatest concern area

19

because it happens the most.

20

building determines what their criteria are for

21

admissions or discharges.

22

continue.

23

breaks a hip and they now need to be cared for with

24

the use of a mechanical lift, my assisted living,

25

most assisted livings do not provide that service.

Every assisted living

And that has to

So if I have a resident who falls and
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1

But according to this termination, I'm required

2

then to do that?

3

I don't even have one in the building.

4

a very big problem, because I can't safely care for

5

that resident anymore.

6

addressed.

7

My staff aren't trained on that.
So this is

And it needs to be

Now, presently how we handle that, we

8

haven't had any issues or concerns.

9

assist families and residents with placement in a

We always

10

facility that can meet their needs along the way

11

and that they are very happy with.

12

wanting to see them move and it's always a sad

13

situation.

14

this.

15

operations in doing so.

16

considered, level of care.

And nobody is

But there is a different way to handle

And we have been very successful in our

17

So that needs to be

I would like to thank you for the

18

opportunity to speak here today.

19

regarding emergency preparation, staffing and

20

terminations are valid and we do have workable

21

solutions and I know we can do better for our

22

residents and staff.

23

better.

24

I request your assistance for changes to be made to

25

do better.

My concerns

And every day we strive to do

And we can and we do.

In these instances,

Thank you, Your Honor.
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THE JUDGE:

1
2

Okay.

Thank you very

much, Ms. Kapsner.

3

MR. SKAAR:

Judge O'Reilly?

4

THE JUDGE:

Yes.

5

MR. SKAAR:

This is Josh Skaar

6

here.

7

ask if you have any written testimony that you

8

intend to submit or if you have a written version

9

of your oral comments that you intend to submit in

10

For, Ms. Kapsner, I just wanted to verify or

the comments?

11
12

MS. KAPSNER:

MR. SKAAR:

14

MS. KAPSNER:

I hear you.
I did not formulate

anything written at this time, no.

16
17

Am I

still muted?

13

15

I did not.

THE JUDGE:

It would be helpful if

you would submit --

18

MR. SKAAR:

Okay --

19

THE JUDGE:

I'm sorry.

Let me

20

interject here.

It would be helpful to me and

21

probably to the agency and to others who aren't

22

here today but who might be reading the comments,

23

it would be really helpful if you could submit your

24

written comments.

25

reading from them.

It appeared that you were
If you could submit written
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1

comments.

2

website that I kind of gave a tutorial on.

3

would be helpful.

Try to do it through the eComments

4
5

It

Thank you.
MS. KAPSNER:

I will do that.

Thank you, Your Honor.

6

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

7

MR. SKAAR:

Thank you, Your Honor.

8

That's exactly where I was headed with that, too.

9

Thanks, Judge.
THE JUDGE:

10
11

it's 11:45.

12

comes after Dawn?

Very good.

We have Dawn H. is up next.

And who

Who's on deck?
MS. KNIGHT:

13

Right now

After Dawn, and I

14

apologize, it's either Lore Brownson or Lore

15

Brownson.

I'm not sure on the pronunciation.

16

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

And how many

17

people including Dawn and Lore are in the queue at

18

this moment?

19

MS. KNIGHT:

20

THE JUDGE:

Six.
Six.

Here's what I

21

will suggest.

22

joining or is it the same people that have been on

23

the whole time kind of waiting?

24

that new people are joining this?

25

Lynn, are we finding that people are

MS. KNIGHT:

Are we finding

I would bounce that
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1

back to Cody.

2

THE JUDGE:

3

MR. BAULEKE:

Okay.
Yeah, I'm here.

I

4

would say that we've been roughly around 130 people

5

and I think they are probably the same people that

6

have been on all along.

7

THE JUDGE:

All right.

8

suggest is why don't we hear from Dawn H.

9

right?

What I
All

And then let's take instead of a long lunch

10

break, let's take like more of a half hour break,

11

all right, and then start with Lore B. and the five

12

people after that.

13

through we are going to get ourselves out to an

14

hour or two hours past right now, perhaps.

Because if we go straight

15

So does anybody object to maybe taking

16

-- let's hear from Dawn H. and then we take a half

17

hour break, return at around 12:30, whenever Dawn

18

is finished, and hear from the five people who are

19

there.
I would like to put up -- when we take

20
21

that break, I would like to put something on the

22

screen, though, to let people know that we are just

23

on a break.

24

away.

25

maybe you could display during the break my

That they are not to hang up or go

That they should still get in queue.
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1

PowerPoint.

2

MR. BAULEKE:

3

I'll whip that up right now.

4

actually Dawn Kuzma.

And I believe it's

Dawn K.

THE JUDGE:

5

I will get that.

K.

So anybody have

6

any objection to that?

7

or Lore B., hold tight.

8

after a shorter lunch break, just to give our Court

9

Reporter time to rest her hands.

10

Okay.

So Lore B. or Lore

You will start us fresh

And even me.

I've been writing madly here for a little while.

11

So let's now turn to Dawn -- you know

12

what might be helpful if, Lynn, if you could list

13

-- since it's only six people, let's list the

14

order, so they know where they're at.

15

have Dawn K., Lore or Lore B.

16

you don't have to say their last name, because it

17

gets difficult for the Court Reporter.

18

could just say the first and last initial.

19

MS. KNIGHT:

Sure.

would have Anna P.

21

two people want to go together.

22

and Knute.

23

her would be Ron E.

25

We

And you can just --

20

24

Okay?

If you

Third, we

Fourth, we would have I believe
I have got Lindsey

After that would be Beth M.

THE JUDGE:
tells you where you are at.

Okay.

And after

So that kind of

Don't worry.
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1

kind of -- it will let you get up if you need to

2

and take a break or do what you need, because you

3

can see where you are in line.

4

start with Dawn K.

5

by noon and then we will start fresh at 12:30 with

6

Lore B. or Lore B. and move down for the last five

7

people pretty much consecutively.

8

say an hour, hour and a half, maybe two hours from

9

there.

So we are going to

We are going to finish her up

So I'd probably

Okay?

10

I haven't been imposing time limits.

11

Everybody has been very organized and efficient.

12

So if, Dawn K., you can please speak so I can see

13

you.

That makes you pop up for me.

14

MR. BAULEKE:

Dawn?

Cody?

Let me look into it.

15

I just promoted her to be a panelist.

16

she's unmuted and her camera is on, so she might be

17

having audio troubles.

18

maybe try and mute and unmute again and we can see

19

if that will work.

Maybe we will have Dawn

THE JUDGE:

20

It says that

Dawn, Cody can see

21

you, if you want to chat with him.

22

now?

23

from Dawn.

24

chat and explain to Cody what's going on.

25

Can you say something?

Can we hear you

We are not hearing

Dawn, if you can hear me, go into your

MR. BAULEKE:

Dawn, if this
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1

doesn't work, I might have you leave and rejoin

2

quickly.

3

then put Dawn below Lore, just for the sake of

4

moving the queue along.

We might have to bounce Lore above and

THE JUDGE:

5

Certainly.

I'm going

6

to give Dawn one more opportunity here before we

7

switch her.

8

come up on my screen.

Dawn, if you speak right now, you will

9

MR. BAULEKE:

I think I saw her

10

try right there.

11

give it one more shot.

12

get you here a little bit later.

13
14

Otherwise we can try and

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

Now I'm hearing

something.
MR. BAULEKE:

15
16

Dawn, do you want to unmute and

I think that's

Susan.

17

THE JUDGE:

All right.

Dawn, you

18

are going to be first up at 12:30.

19

skip over you and have you come in, you are first

20

in line at 12:30 after the break.

21

move on to Lore B.

22

you?

We are going to

You haven't left us, Lore, have

Is it Lore or Lore?

23

MS. BROWNSON:

24

THE JUDGE:

25

We are going to

Can you hear me?

I can hear you.

There, I can both see and hear you.

Are you
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1

prepared to go?

2

12:30.

I know I told you it would be

3

MS. BROWNSON:

4

THE JUDGE:

I believe I am.

Okay.

Very good.

5

And, again, I'm letting Dawn K. know, we will start

6

you at 12:30 after recess.
If you would please state and spell

7
8

your first and last name, ma'am.

9

MS. BROWNSON:

10

is Lore.

11

Brownson.

Very good.

And it's spelled L-o-r-e.

My name

Last name

That's spelled B-r-o-w-n-s-o-n.

12

THE JUDGE:

Please proceed.

13

MS. BROWNSON:

Thank you, Your

14

Honor.

15

today on the proposed procedures for resident

16

termination and discharge planning and termination

17

appeals.

18

I appreciate the opportunity to testify

In the way of background, I have been

19

in health care close to 40 years.

First, as a

20

registered nurse for 10 years in the acute care

21

space.

22

I served as health care regulatory counsel for the

23

skilled nursing facilities division of a national

24

Fortune 500, long-term care company.

25

present company, New Perspective, which is a

Then after obtaining a law degree in 1997,
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1

Minnesota based senior living provider which owns

2

and operates assisted living communities in

3

Minnesota as well as Wisconsin, Illinois and North

4

Dakota, for six years now.

5

I have served as senior vice president, quality

6

services and chief compliance officer.

For the past six years,

7

Separate from my work in health care

8

over the number of years, I am the daughter of a

9

wonderful father who for the years before his death

10

resided in both assisted living and skilled nursing

11

settings.

12

key of which were diabetes, cardiovascular disease

13

and dementia.

14

financial power of attorney and followed a person-

15

centered approach to his care long before person-

16

centered care was a defined term and process.

17

My having a legal and health care

My father had multiple comorbidities,

I was my father's health care and

18

background was, no doubt, daunting for the

19

operators of the health care communities at which

20

my father resided.

21

falls and would not consistently use his walker

22

when walking or follow other interventions to

23

reduce the risk of falls.

24

communities that quality of life and following my

25

father's wishes were the priority in a

My father had a history of

I advised the

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

100

1

person-centered care approach.

2

accepted the associated risk to any decisions made.

3

And that he and I

I was also clear on when my father

4

needed a higher level of care than what the

5

assisted living setting could provide.

6

me to proposed Rule 4659.0120 and its subparts and

7

procedures for resident termination and discharge

8

planning.

This leads

9

I want to first stress, as Shauna and

10

Josh have said, that from my experience providers

11

strive to support aging in place, and that in the

12

majority of cases the assisted living provider and

13

resident legal representative are in mutual

14

agreement about a needed discharge with a discharge

15

proceeding only after detailed discussions of any

16

available options to avoid discharge.

17

My concerns about the proposed rule for

18

that wherein the majority of cases there is mutual

19

agreement, there are times that there is not a

20

meeting of the minds.

21

health, safety and welfare of the resident issue or

22

other residents and staff are at risk, the proposed

23

procedures for terminating a resident's agreement

24

and subsequent appeals process will cause

25

significant undue delays to discharge.

In situations where the
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The requirements of Minnesota Rule

2

4659.0120, subparts 1 through 4 for ALS to schedule

3

and participate in a pre-termination meeting which

4

mandates the resident, guests and representatives

5

are able to attend followed by a written summary of

6

the meeting within 24 hours all before being able

7

to issue a notice of termination is time consuming

8

and poses challenges in the exact circumstances for

9

which there isn't a meeting of the minds among the

10

parties involved.

11

delay a needed discharge by simply not being

12

available for a meeting.

13

is a common scenario and when there is not a

14

meeting of the minds in decisions.

15

Residents and others can easily

As Shauna expressed, this

In addition, requiring the assisted

16

living facility to coordinate a meeting that

17

includes the ombudsman, case manager, most

18

importantly any third parties the resident and

19

their representative request to attend will further

20

complicate the process as the assisted living

21

facility will be challenged to coordinate a meeting

22

conducive to everyone's schedules and, moreover,

23

bring these parties up to speed on the reasons for

24

the termination.

25

the resident and potentially others to unnecessary

Delays in discharge can expose
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1

risks involving health, safety and welfare.

2

Further, the proposed procedures are required even

3

if there is a meeting of the minds on termination.

4

Adding in the proposed termination appeal

5

procedures under 4659.0210 followed by an eviction

6

proceeding for residents who do not agree to the

7

termination will further delay a needed discharge.

8
9

Given that the proposed rules create
new time consuming requirements to make the

10

termination procedure more complex than is

11

reasonable and necessary, I ask that you disapprove

12

the subparts to the proposed rules.

13

Your Honor.

14

THE JUDGE:

Thank you,

Thank you, very much

15

for those comments.

16

in writing as well or have you already submitted

17

those?

18
19
20

Will you be submitting those

MS. BROWNSON:

I have not, Your

Honor, but I can do so.
THE JUDGE:

I would appreciate it.

21

And then for everybody else who is listening it

22

would be helpful if you would submit in writing.

23

Usually when we have in-person rule hearings, I

24

will even say, hey, can I just take your notes.

25

Because they are helpful.

You know?

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

And so I

103

1

would take those, physically take those notes, put

2

a stamp on them as an exhibit and put it in the

3

record.

4

just asking that if everybody who is speaking it is

5

very helpful if you submit those in the eComments

6

website with your name so I can pair them up with

7

your name.

But I can't do that right now.

Okay?

So I'm

Thank you.

8

MS. BROWNSON:

9

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

Okay.

We have gotten

10

to the noon hour.

I'm going to just ask if Dawn K.

11

has rejoined us, just so we can touch base with

12

her?

13

12:30.

She's going to be the first person up at

14

MR. BAULEKE:

15

We were going to work on the audio stuff during

16

break.

Do you want to take her right now before?
THE JUDGE:

17

Yes, Dawn is here.

No.

Why don't we just

18

take the -- like I explained to everybody, because

19

they are prepared for this now, we are going to

20

take a half hour break.

21

12:30.

22

screen to let people know if they haven't appeared

23

yet.

24

and I want to get in the hearing, I want them to

25

see something on the screen that we're coming back.

We are going to return at

We are going to put something up on the

For example, let's say I just got off of work
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Don't worry.

2

And we will start first off with Dawn

3

K.

4

and Knute, Beth and Rom.

We will go to Anna P.

We will go to Lindsey
In that order.

MR. BAULEKE:

5

Perfect.

Okay?
I have

6

that slide.

7

then I will put Dawn to get her sent over.

8
9

So I will put that on the screen.

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

interim, I'm going to stay on.

And

In the

I am not logging

10

off.

11

And everybody else might want to do the same, to

12

ensure that -- so I'm going to have mine off, but I

13

will be rejoining at 12:30.

14

until 12:30.

15

I'm going to turn off my video and my audio.

So we stand in recess

Thank you.

(At this time a luncheon recess was taken.)

16

THE JUDGE:

Let's go back on the

17

record.

18

returning with our next speaker.

19

state and spell your first and last name.

We've taken a short lunch break and

MS. KUZMA:

20

If you can please

My name is Dawn Kuzma.

21

Spelled D-a-w-n K-u-z-m-a.

I am here today not as

22

-- not as a member of any professional

23

organization.

24

take no pleasure in reading statutory law.

25

not something I'm accustomed to or feel

I am not a lawyer by training and I
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1

particularly good at.

But I have some concerns

2

about the licensing regulations as they might

3

affect small residential assisted living

4

facilities.
By some sort of extraordinary

5
6

coincidence, my husband Alex Houlding died in an

7

assisted living facility three years ago.

8

three years ago today.

9

at is a place called Breck Homes.

Exactly

And the place that he died
And I supplied

10

written comments that described his journey and our

11

family's journey through that terrible time.

12

When I talk about Breck, I kind of run

13

out of superlatives pretty quickly.

14

they did was beyond what my best expectations could

15

have been for how to handle a man with such a

16

difficult and challenging dementia and illness at

17

such a young age.

18

and vigorous man, and was someone who could easily

19

hurt other people without ever realizing he was

20

doing it.

21

Because part of his brain that controlled empathy

22

and proper social response was affected by the

23

disease.

24
25

Everything

He was a very healthy and strong

Without ever giving it any thought.

I've heard horror stories about people
with the same illness being rejected from
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1

residential care facilities -- or not residential,

2

assisted living and nursing home environments

3

because of behavior issues that were difficult to

4

control because of staff unable to give them

5

one-on-one attention to someone with his kind of

6

illness might have.

7

And what I learned at Breck is they

8

were able to work with him where he was, meet his

9

needs, understand him, redirect him, encourage him,

10

support him and care for him.

They did a beautiful

11

job in communicating with me and my family at all

12

points in the journey.

13

incident that needed to be reported, it was

14

reported to me personally via a phone call or an

15

in-person visit immediately.

16

what was going on.

17

every day when I was at work of what my husband was

18

up to and what kind of adventures they were having

19

at Breck.

20

the house.

21

to visit him.

22

he wished as long as it was safe.

23

basically the kind of place that I think most

24

people, given a choice, would want to be in or want

25

their loved ones to be in.

Whenever there was an

I never had to wonder

I received photographs nearly

There were dogs and cats running through
We were able to bring our family pets
Alex could come and go as freely as
And it's

And part of what makes
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Breck such a special place and such a wonderful

2

place is that they react situationally on an

3

individual basis to each person's needs.

4

So as I have been listening to the

5

various testimonies today and hearing about things

6

like call times and wait times and staff postings

7

and assisted living directors and emergency plans

8

and terminations, I have to say, honestly, that

9

that doesn't seem to me to be any kind of an issue

10

at Breck.

11

don't know the numbers, but my guess is that in all

12

of the years that Jenny has been operating those

13

homes I would be surprised if there were more than

14

a handful of people where that was ever required.

15

And probably more likely at the request of the

16

family than of Breck.

17

those facts.

18

seen.

19

People aren't terminated from Breck.

I

But I don't actually know

I'm just surmising from what I have

I've heard about the concerns about

20

facility and other things, and I think that they

21

are pretty irrelevant for small homes.

22

know where the statutory guidelines came to play

23

that the breakoff point for a residential care home

24

that needed to be subject to these rules was four

25

people.

I think it's pretty low.

I don't

Breck has two
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1

homes.

Each home meets the needs of six residents.

2

And the staff to resident ratio is like a dream

3

come true.

4

see Alex, there would be three full-time staff

5

people there and people that have been with Breck

6

for 10 or more years.

7

much that means when you are a person helping a

8

loved one through this difficulty to have staff

9

that just has that continuity and the experience.

On most days when I would stop by to

And I can't tell you how

10

It isn't their first rodeo.

11

They know exactly what to do.

12

was dying, they knew exactly how to manage that

13

process both with him and with us.

14

Not by a long shot.
And as my husband

I ask only that as we think about these

15

licensing statutes and regulations we think about

16

how they affect a smaller residential treatment

17

home.

18

the strength of it.

19

exactly the kind of thing that many thought leaders

20

about assisted living like (undecipherable) would

21

say it's exactly the kind of place you would want

22

your loved one to be.

23

restrictions and more and more licensing fees and

24

more and more administrative burden and more and

25

more facility changes to accommodate unforeseen

It really does operate like a home.
It's the beauty of it.

It's
It's

And by adding more and more

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

109

1

circumstances that haven't ever happened as far as

2

I know, we are going to force some of these small

3

and excellent cares right out of business.

4

I was listening to Shauna's remarks

5

earlier today and I think she was saying some of

6

the same things that I feel as I listen to this

7

conversation.

8

are searching for in senior care, so many of the

9

things that are really important are already being

So many of the things that people

10

met at a place like Breck.

11

is a need to further regulate them.

12

is a need to, like, talk to them about why it's

13

working so well and why family members love it so

14

much and see how everybody else can adopt some of

15

their practices into their way of thinking of

16

things.

17

And I don't think there
I think there

It's not to say -- I do appreciate

18

completely that everyone working on this, everyone

19

working on this has a real and a sincere interest

20

in getting the best possible care for their loved

21

ones in these facilities.

22

hear stories of abuse and other problems, I'm just

23

-- I'm horrified and sickened.

24

all of that news was breaking in the Star and Trib,

25

I breathed a huge sigh of relief.

I share that.

When I

And, actually, when

Because I knew
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1

my husband was in a place where that was never

2

going to happen.

3

going to happen to him.

4

did.

None of those things were ever
And nothing like that ever

And also respect that there is a wish

5
6

to simplify licensure and to make it more

7

consistent across assisted living facilities, to

8

look for excellence in credentialing and

9

management.

All of that I endorse wholeheartedly.

10

I just think that there needs to be some leeway

11

here for smaller homes that provide the kind of

12

residential care.

13

model from the kind of place that my mother ended

14

up in, which was a much larger facility where every

15

single regulation that you are mentioning here

16

would have been wonderful to have in place, given

17

her situation.

18

Because it's a very different

So that's the gist of my comments

19

today.

I just would really like as people go

20

through and look at these rules to understand the

21

financial and regulatory hurdles this will require

22

for small homes that are already strapped for

23

funds, already doing the very best that they can,

24

providing a wonderful service.

25

could be in financial jeopardy and possibly closed

The idea that they

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

111

1

down because they are unable to meet these

2

requirements makes me incredibly sad.

3

have spoken to other family members whose loved

4

ones were at Breck and they all feel the same way

5

that I do.

6

family members who have worked with any of the

7

smaller residential homes.

8

has got to be a middle path here.

9

way we can accommodate and encourage and support

And I know I

And I would guess that that's true for

I just think that there
There is some

10

this residential model as an excellent alternative

11

for people who are looking for assisted living

12

care.

And that's the end of my comments.

13

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

Very good.

14

going to wait a second.

15

feedback there.

16

going to be submitting those written documents?

17

Have you already?

18

Because there was some

Thank you, Ms. Kuzma.

MS. KUZMA:

Are you

I have submitted some

19

written documents.

20

clarification based on what I said today.

21

I'm

But I will put some additional

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

That would be

22

wonderful.

On the eComments website, that's what's

23

preferred.

So I would welcome you to do that.

24

Thank you very much.

25

So, madam operator, we now have Anna P.
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1

is up next.

And then after that we have on deck

2

Lindsey and Knute.

3

MS. KNIGHT:

Just Lindsey.

I was

4

misinformed.

5

end of the list we did have one more person join.

6

It's just Lindsey.

THE JUDGE:

At then at the

Okay.

7

the first name of that next person.

8

person.

9
10

MS. KNIGHT:

That last

The final person

would be Michelle N.

11

THE JUDGE:

12

MS. KNIGHT:

13

And can I have

Michelle N.

Perfect.

So including Anna

there should be five.

14

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

15

Cody, if you can help us to get Anna P. up and

16

running here.

17

MS. PETERSMEYER:

18

THE JUDGE:

Hello.

19

see you there.

Give me one moment.

20

you can see and hear us as well?

21

MS. PETERSMEYER:

22

THE JUDGE:

23
24
25

Okay.

Very good.

So,

Good afternoon.
Okay.

And I

And I assume

I can.
Very good.

If

you can please, your first and last name.
MS. PETERSMEYER:
name is Anna, A-n-n-a, Petersmeyer.

Sure.

My first

All one word.
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It's P-e-t-e-r-s-m-e-y-e-r.

2
3

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

Please

proceed.

4

MS. PETERSMEYER:

5

the opportunity to offer some comments today in the

6

public hearing.

7

at Vista Prairie Communities.

8

P-r-a-i-r-i-e Communities.

9

provider of assisted living, independent living,

Thank you for

I am the chief operating officer
And that's V-i-s-t-a

We are a nonprofit

10

memory care, care suites in Minnesota, Iowa, Ohio

11

and Wisconsin.

12

in Minnesota.

13

Minnesota.

14

of LeadingAge Minnesota and participates in a

15

long-term care care initiatives.

16

We own and operate six facilities
Five of them are in greater state

Vista Prairie Communities is a member

In previous roles, I acted as the chief

17

operating officer of Volunteers of America of

18

Minnesota and Wisconsin.

19

state's largest health and human service

20

organizations providing service to 25,000

21

Minnesotans on an annual basis.

22

I've held several positions in senior services over

23

the span of the last 26 years, including leadership

24

roles with Benedictine Health System and Serenity

25

Senior Care.

Which is one of the

And prior to that

I'm also a licensed social worker.
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1

hold a bachelor's degree in social work and a

2

master's degree in business administration.

3

most importantly, I am a family member having three

4

grandparents who lived in assisted living

5

facilities whose levels of care ranged from

6

independent living to memory care.

And,

7

We at Vista Prairie Communities support

8

enacting legislation that will help seniors live as

9

independently as possible for as long as they are

10

able and have access to care in the communities

11

where they call home.

12

supports the proposed rule regarding staffing

13

standards.

14

Vista Prairie Communities

Which is section 4659.0180.
The proposed rule is reasonable and

15

reflects a person-centered approach which is

16

central to Minnesota's assisted living regulation.

17

Which is also central to the last caller's comments

18

regarding the ability to provide individualized

19

care within communities.

20

We are pleased to see the response in

21

the public comments from the Office of

22

Administrative Hearings that the rule language

23

directs facilities to base staffing levels on

24

current resident needs, which is very fluid and

25

requires continuous monitoring and response by a
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1

registered nurse who is already on site.

2

Staffing is driven by residents' needs versus a

3

ratio-based model which is -- a resident's needs

4

which is in a person-centered model is way more

5

beneficial to the resident than just ratio-based.

6

Chapter 144G statute already refers to

7

the registered nurse ensuring staff competency

8

aided by the completed employee record with

9

evidence of competency testing.
Vista Prairie Communities is concerned

10
11

and opposes subpart 4.

12

4659.0180.

13

creating and posting a general work schedule, the

14

required detail included in the proposed rule under

15

subpart 4 are burdensome and create privacy issues

16

with staff and residents.

17

And that's of the Rule

While we do not oppose the concept of

We would further recommend removing the

18

requirement that a publically posted schedule

19

include resident staff assignment.

20

infringement on the resident privacy rights.

21

identity of any person receiving assisted living or

22

dementia services is protected information under

23

the federal HIPAA requirement and by state law,

24

previously mentioned by multiple providers prior to

25

me.

This is an
The

We recommend additional consideration be given
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1

for exceptions for staff that may have a bona fide

2

safety concern if information about his or her

3

staffing assignments is publically posted.

4

We own and operate multiple assisted

5

living communities in rural Minnesota.

Some of

6

these facilities are the only option in the area.

7

We offer multiple levels of care ranging from

8

minimal services to high acuity services in our

9

care suites.

We provide services in multiple

10

levels because this strategy best meets the needs

11

of the older adults in rural communities.

12

Working under the existing Statute

13

144G, our clinical team assesses on a person-

14

centered basis.

15

adjusts services and staffing as needed in real

16

time.

17

not reasonable and would likely be inaccurate and

18

outdated the moment it's posted.

19

As cares fluctuate, the team

Posting daily schedules on every floor is

Vista Prairie Communities also has

20

significant concerns regarding the benefits of and

21

our ability to implement proposed procedures for

22

resident termination and discharge planning.

23

is 4659.0120.

24

duplicative of what is already in statute.

25

4659.0120 fails to strike the appropriate balance

Which

We believe this entire subpart is
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1

between providing residents with the smooth

2

transition and the ability of providers to act

3

within a reasonable timeframe to terminate an

4

agreement when necessary.

5

ultimately puts residents at risk because of its

6

opportunities to delay a necessary termination and

7

transition of providers.

8
9

The proposed rule

The rule generally does not provide any
accommodation for uncooperative residents or

10

resident's representatives.

11

in contentious cases.

12

ability to implement unnecessary service

13

termination in a prompt and effective manner and

14

provides burdensome mechanisms that enables the

15

resident's representatives to divert necessary

16

terminations by simply refusing or delaying to

17

participate.

18

Making it unworkable

It defeats the facility's

Rule 144G.52, subpart 2 under 2(b)

19

already requires a premeeting must take place at

20

least seven days prior before notice of

21

termination.

22

above what is clearly articulated in the current

23

statute.

24

assurances preventing arbitrary terminations.

25

The enabling legislation already mandates the

The proposed rule goes beyond and

The statute already provides robust
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1

opportunity for thoughtful discussion.

2

Again, I thank you, Your Honor, and the

3

Department of Health.

4

legislation that will help seniors live

5

independently.

6

and I appreciate the opportunity to contribute my

7

comments.

We support the enacting

I will be submitting these comments

8

THE JUDGE:

9

And we will look forward to those then on the

10

Thank you very much.

eComments website.

11

MS. PETERSMEYER:

12

THE JUDGE:

Thank you.

13

Next up -- hold one moment please.

14

moment.

15

So Lindsey is up next.

16

Lindsey ready to go?

I apologize for that.

17
Lindsey.

19

whenever.

Hold one

Somebody walked in.

I just promoted

So she should be able to jump in

THE JUDGE:

20
21

Okay.

Let's look and see is

MR. BAULEKE:

18

Thank you.

Okay.

I see Susan.

And Beth is on deck after Lindsey.

22

MR. BAULEKE:

It looks like

23

Lindsey is having trouble connecting her

24

microphone.

25

I might try and work with Lindsey here quickly

The same sort of thing that Dawn had.
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1

through the chat box to get her computer phone

2

working.

3

whoever is in the queue and come back to Lindsey.

So maybe we will just kind of jump to

4

THE JUDGE:

I'm wondering if the

5

public members are not -- when you first get into

6

WebEx, it says do you want to use your computer or

7

phone.

8

test to work on the audio so you can test it out.

Right?

9

And then it gives you a computer

MR. BAULEKE:
THE JUDGE:

10
11

can work that out.

12

go?

13
really quick.

15

Okay.

16

to speak.

17
Beth.

Let me find Beth

I think I have her right here.

Beth is just promoted, so she should be able

Hello.

This is

Can you hear me?
THE JUDGE:

Yes, we can.

Now,

Beth, do you have your video on?

21
22

So, Beth M., are you ready to

MS. McMULLEN:

19
20

So, hopefully, they

MR. BAULEKE:

14

18

Correct.

MS. McMULLEN:

I thought that I

had it.

23

THE JUDGE:

There we are.

24

MS. McMULLEN:

25

THE JUDGE:

You can see me now?

I can.

So here's how
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1

we are going to do it.

We are going to start with

2

Beth and we are going to go back to Lindsey, hoping

3

that she has her audio repaired.

4

would please state and spell your first and last

5

name.

So, Beth, if you

6

MS. McMULLEN:

7

name is Beth, B-e-t-h, McMullen, M-c-M-u-l-l-e-n.

8

So my name is Beth McMullen and I am vice president

9

of Government Affairs for the Alzheimer's

Absolutely.

My

10

Association Minnesota, North Dakota chapter.

11

Alzheimer's Association is the word's leading

12

voluntary health organization and Alzheimer's care,

13

support and research.

14

at the state and federal levels to improve the

15

lives of all those affected by Alzheimer's,

16

including enhancing the quality of care in

17

residential settings like assisted living

18

facilities.

19

The

We advance public policies

Today there are an estimated 99,000

20

Minnesotans living with Alzheimer's disease.

And

21

that number is expected to grow to 120,000 in less

22

than five years.

23

residents in residential care communities like

24

assisted living have Alzheimer's or another form of

25

dementia.

Approximately 42 percent of

Given the growing population and the
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1

unique needs and challenges that dementia presents

2

to individuals, the Alzheimer's Association works

3

to ensure that decisionmakers like yourself

4

understand how these rules will impact people

5

living with dementia.

6

comments via the online system last week.

7

We have submitted our

As an organization who has been a part

8

of this long-term effort, it's an honor to speak

9

here today.

We support the majority of these rules

10

as being consistent with the statute with the

11

intent of the legislature and those who worked so

12

hard to develop this licensure framework.

13

appreciate the opportunity to highlight our

14

rationale for a few of our key recommendations here

15

today.

And we

16

In order to develop a strong licensing

17

framework, the Alzheimer's Association's objective

18

over the last several years of work on this statute

19

and rule has been threefold.

20

given to design the system that will, one, protect

21

resident's rights, choices, their health and

22

safety.

23

to deliver quality care.

24

Department of Health to regulate critical aspects

25

of the system.

Consideration must be

Two, ensure that care providers are set up
And, three, allow the
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1

Now, while there have been some

2

horrible examples of neglect, abuse and

3

maltreatment in this type of setting, I want to

4

recognize and appreciate the vast majority of

5

providers who provide quality care.

6

the difficult job that these professionals who

7

provide care and support that they face every day.

8

And while these changes have been a long time

9

coming, the current pandemic serves to highlight

10

the difficulty of ensuring safe, quality care to

11

the thousands who live in our state's long-term

12

care settings.

13

We recognize

As noted in our comments, the

14

Alzheimer's Association has long been a leader in

15

outlining principles and practices of quality care

16

for individuals living with dementia.

17

dementia care practice recommendations were

18

developed to better define quality care across all

19

care settings and throughout the disease course.

20

We use these evidence-based recommendations where

21

appropriate to provide advice, direction and

22

recommendation to the legislature and MDH in the

23

development of this new framework.

24
25

Our 2018

I would like to highlight the
importance of a few key areas of alignment between
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1

our dementia care practice recommendations and this

2

rule and the underlying statute.

3

The first is in assessments, 4659.0140.

4

The quality of dementia care provided for

5

individuals is contingent upon the quality of

6

assessment and care planning and the degree to

7

which those processes are person-centered.

8

Settings should perform regular comprehensive

9

person-centered assessments and timely interim

10

assessments.

11

opportunity for information gathering, relationship

12

building, education and support.

13

documentation and communication systems to

14

facilitate the delivery of person-centered

15

information between all care providers.

16

They should use assessment as an

They should use

Because someone living with dementia

17

may have diminished or limited ability to

18

communicate their own needs, special care must be

19

given how assessments are conducted, ensuring first

20

that the resident is engaged at a time that will

21

allow them to be at their optimal functioning and

22

that those who are most familiar with the resident

23

are allowed to provide input.

24
25

With this in mind, I call attention to
subpart 2 of .0140.

We ask for consideration of

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

124

1

our recommendation to ensure that the time of day

2

is considered to allow the resident living with

3

dementia is at their optimal level of functioning

4

and that input from family and friends or care

5

staff familiar with the individual is also

6

considered.

7

Now I would like to move to the

8

importance of staffing, 4659.0180.

9

Association has identified staff across the long-

The Alzheimer's

10

term care spectrum as a distinct and important

11

determinant of quality dementia care.

12

suggest that it is the single most important

13

determinant of quality dementia care across all

14

settings.

15

dementia care concentrated in this rule.

16

support the staffing rule as it is written with a

17

small suggestion.

In fact, we

Staffing is a key component for quality

18

So we

Staffing levels should be -- the reason

19

we support this is that staffing levels should be

20

adequate to allow for proper care at all times, day

21

and night.

22

based on changing needs throughout the course of

23

the disease.

24

that staff members not be overworked during their

25

shift.

Staffing levels should be adjusted

And sufficient staff also ensures
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1

With these points in mind, we ask for

2

consideration for subpart 3 of 4659.0180.

3

recommendations are that after-hour nursing care

4

procedures are included.

5

identifying the 24 hour awake staff in a secured

6

dementia care unit.

7

Our

And for subpart 4

Thank you for consideration of our

8

recommendations and I would be happy to answer any

9

questions, Your Honor.

I can't hear the judge.

THE JUDGE:

10

Sorry.

Did you say

11

that you are going to be submitting this in

12

addition to what you have already submitted or are

13

you --

14
15

MS. McMULLEN:

This is in our

comments, Your Honor.

16

THE JUDGE:

17

good.

18

I appreciate it.

19

bugs worked out there?

It is.

Very

Thank you very much for your comments today.
Next up, did we get Lindsey's

MR. BAULEKE:

20

Okay.

I think we are going

21

to give it a go here again.

22

telephone I believe through WebEx.

23

promote Lindsey here and we will give it a try.

24

Okay.

25

She's connected via
So we will

She's been promoted.
THE JUDGE:

Lindsey, can you hear
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1

me?

Lindsey, I'm not hearing you.

2
3

MR. BAULEKE:
think by accident.

Lindsey?

4

MS. SAND:

5

THE JUDGE:

6

can see you now.

She muted herself I

Yes.

Can you hear me?

Yes, we can.

And I

Very good.

7

MS. SAND:

Good.

8

THE JUDGE:

9

figure out what the problem is so I can maybe

So, Cody, did we

10

explain it to others if we have this problem going

11

forward?

12

Do you know what -MR. BAULEKE:

Unfortunately,

13

sometimes it's just people's computers.

14

for me to know, because I don't know what

15

everyone's machine is.

16

go into audio and test and see if their microphone

17

is work being, that would be great.

18

prepared to move to your phone pretty quickly.

19

THE JUDGE:

20

So just before people can

Okay.

MR. BAULEKE:

22

THE JUDGE:

24
25

Otherwise, be

Very good.

Meaning phone through InterCall?

21

23

It's hard

Yes, correct.
Lindsey, why don't we

have you come back on.
MS. SAND:
thank you, Your Honor.

Sounds good.

I want to

My name is Lindsey Sand.
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1

L-i-n-d-s-e-y.

2

Sand, S-a-n-d.

I want to thank you, Your Honor, for

3

this opportunity to provide testimony today.

4

will also be planning to submit my comments via the

5

portal.

6

I

I am present today to provide

7

perspective as a former community services

8

director, licensed nursing home administrator,

9

frontline worker, housing and assisted living

10

director, former and current caregiver for

11

grandparents and an advocate for choice, safety,

12

well-being, access and affordability of care for

13

our aging population.

14

I currently serve as the vice president

15

of Population Health for Knute Nelson.

16

the LeadingAge Minnesota board of directors, the

17

LeadingAge Minnesota foundation board.

18

participate as a member of Age Friendly Alexandria

19

and serve on the Central Minnesota Age Friendly

20

leadership team.

21

LeadingAge Minnesota assisted living licensure task

22

force.

23

I sit on

I

I am also a member of the

I have worked in the care industry

24

since I was 16 years old and have spent the last 20

25

years working beside the most compassionate team,

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

128

1

serving the most deserving and appreciative

2

individuals and holding the hands and celebrating

3

or grieving with families and caregivers both

4

formal and informal.
I support several of the proposed rules

5
6

as they call to action a person-centered approach

7

towards service.

8

concern over several of the proposed rules.

9

But I also want to express great

Over the course of my senior care

10

career, I have experienced -- over the course of my

11

senior care career, I have experienced both the

12

appreciation for regulations that are in place for

13

much needed areas, but also the limiting and costly

14

burden of certain regulations on residents,

15

families and facilities within our industry.

16

here to urge caution with the adoption of the

17

latter.

18

and emergency and disaster planning.

I am

Particularly those surrounding staffing

19

I would be remiss not to begin with a

20

thank you to the dozens of stakeholders that have

21

spent countless hours of time planning and

22

discussing the enabling legislation.

23

there with you and I truly believe that this is

24

essential work that would help shape the future of

25

our care industry.

I have been

The multiple efforts put forth
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1

have all contributed with similar goals and core

2

values in mind and were the ends sought for the

3

chapter 144G.

4

attention a few of these values prior to addressing

5

my concerns.

6

And I would like to call to

Number one, we will strive to balance

7

personal rights, autonomy, choice and privacy with

8

safety and health protections for vulnerable

9

adults.

We will value person-centered solutions

10

over those that are primarily institution-centered.

11

And the settings need to be and remain accessible

12

to low-income populations.

13

allow sustained access to home and community-based

14

services Medicaid funding and should also work to

15

improve those for Elderly Waiver.

Any new systems must

16

It is vital prior to rule

17

implementation that proper evaluation be conducted

18

regarding the potential impact of these proposed

19

rules on the affordability and access limitations

20

of assisted living services for seniors.

21

increased cost due to new regulations will

22

inevitably impact consumers of assisted living

23

services.

24

program that covers assisted living services for

25

low-income seniors, already fails to cover the cost

Any

Elderly Waiver, the Medical Assistance
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1

of providing those services today.

2

There are key aspects of the proposed

3

rule that will inevitably impact the cost of

4

assisted living services in the future, including

5

emergency preparedness and staffing.

6

Minnesota lawmakers have not appropriated any

7

additional funding to the Elderly Waiver program to

8

offset these costs.

9

less costly alternatives to these proposals that do

Importantly,

If there is reasonable and

10

not diminish quality care, it would serve us well

11

to modify the rule accordingly.

12

render care completely unaffordable to those on

13

Elderly Waiver, I fear that facilities will no

14

longer be able to accept residents who qualify for

15

waiver and we would be forced for those consumers

16

to seek nursing home care at a greater cost to the

17

state taxpayers.

18

If the regulations

To the extent that the proposed rules

19

borrow from state and federal nursing home

20

regulations, I want to express extreme caution and

21

analysis.

22

approach to the work of regulating our assisted

23

living facilities, I oppose the approach taken in

24

section 4659.0100 which speaks to incorporate the

25

federal nursing home standard.

As a matter of principle and overall

Such an approach is
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1

not reasonable, as the Centers of Medicare and

2

Medicaid Services did not have assisted living in

3

mind when they wrote the nursing facility rules.

4

Stakeholders intentionally decided not simply to

5

duplicate nursing home regulations in designing

6

assisted living licensure to avoid completely

7

changing the structure of assisted living from home

8

and community-based services to institutions.

9

There has been no vetting or discussion of how

10

these standards may be ruled out in assisted

11

living, including addressing the unnecessary

12

complexity and the costly implementation plans

13

required in Appendix Z.

14

As a former nursing home administrator

15

that has written and implemented policies in

16

accordance with Appendix Z, there are several

17

concerns that I have regarding applying these

18

standards to assisted living, including your

19

requirements for on-hand provisions such as

20

adequate food, pharmaceuticals and medical supplies

21

as well as the need for tracking sheltered in place

22

residents.

23

levels of care that may exist in an assisted living

24

building, not recognizing that there may be

25

residents that choose not to purchase services and

These areas fail to consider the very
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1

choose only to have a tenant relationship, thus

2

making it impossible for the facility to ensure

3

that provisions are available to meet the complete

4

needs of every resident and account for the

5

whereabouts of said resident.

6

Another concern required with the

7

adoption of Appendix Z is the necessity of a

8

complex medical records system.

9

resident of an assisted living setting will be

Again, not every

10

receiving services from that setting, therefore, it

11

is not reasonable to require that settings maintain

12

an electronic health record on every resident.

13

There would be significant cost to compliance of

14

this proposed rule that will have not be factored

15

into discussion as many of assisted living

16

facilities have not typically had the same level of

17

funding in support for implementation of electronic

18

health records that hospitals and nursing homes

19

have received.
And, finally, and most concerning to me

20
21

is the dependence that CMC, the Centers for

22

Medicaid and Medicare Services, requires on the

23

Life Safety Code and the related NFPA Code

24

requirement for emergency and standby power

25

systems.

This is not a reasonable expectation for
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1

all assisted living settings, especially those

2

small residential care homes, and compliance would

3

significantly drive up operation costs which would

4

need to be passed on to residents.

5

I request that assisted living settings

6

continue to be viewed not as institutions, but

7

rather home and community-based settings in

8

construction of this rule.

9

In general, I support the approach

10

proposed in the rules about staffing standards,

11

section 4659.0180.

12

proposed rules will be in addition to the already

13

extensive staffing and training requirements

14

already included in Statute 144G.

15

rule is reasonable and reflects a person-centered

16

approach that is central to Minnesota's approach to

17

assisted living regulation.

18

would require a clinical nurse supervisor to

19

develop and implement a staffing plan that provides

20

an adequate number of qualified staff to meet the

21

residents' needs 24 hours a day, 7 days week.

22

approach recognizes that needs of residents may

23

vary and staff experience may vary.

24

entrusts the expertise of the clinical nurse

25

supervisor to ensure appropriate and person-

It should be noted that these

The proposed

The proposed rule

And it
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1

centered staffing.

2

I would oppose any alternative approach

3

like has been suggested today that would impose

4

strict staffing ratios.

5

person-centered approach to care and unnecessarily

6

drive up costs of care and contribute to the

7

already stressed and limited pool of staff for care

8

across the care spectrum.

9

recognize the varying levels of care present in

This would ignore the

It also fails to

10

assisted living.

11

avoided including acuity limits in assisted living

12

licensure statutes.

13

affirmed a core value shared by stakeholders that

14

seniors should have the ability to age in place.

15

This means that the level of care may vary

16

significantly with an assisted living facility from

17

those needing simple assisted living support to

18

those needing advanced, enhanced assisted living

19

support.

20

facility to dictate the appropriate staffing level

21

based on informed assessments of the collective

22

resident population.

23

Minnesota lawmakers intentionally

This was intentional, as it

A person-centered approach allows the

I would also like to raise concern with

24

the public posting requirements in section

25

4659.0180, subpart 4(B).

While I support
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1

transparency, I am concerned that the approach is

2

not reasonable and is not required based on the

3

statute.

4

concerns for staff in the setting and may

5

unintentionally infringe on privacy rights of

6

residents.

7

requirement of schedules posted on every floor.

8

This is not reasonable and could have potential for

9

errors such as changes in staffing and care change

Posting may create unintentional safety

I would recommend eliminating the

10

throughout the day, which does happen and can

11

happen frequently.

12

all schedules are updated timely could stand in the

13

way of care delivery and is unnecessary as a

14

facility staffing record is maintained and the

15

responsibility for appropriate staffing levels

16

would remain.

17

The requirement to ensure that

If required as part of the approved

18

rules, a more reasonable approach would be to post

19

a single, central location in each building.

20

would further recommend removing the requirement of

21

posting publicly schedules, including resident

22

assignments, in order to honor the privacy rights

23

of residents.

24
25

I

Finally, I am opposed to section
4659.0180, subpart 6.

This is not necessary or
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1

reasonable.

2

out as the staffing plan is to take in account the

3

24 hour a day needs of residents who have

4

contracted for services.

5

10-minute response time appears to be arbitrary.

6

If it remains, I recommend keeping the as soon as

7

possible and to eliminate the no later than 10

8

minutes to account for emergency situations and

9

ability for staff to triage a situation and respond

10

Nighttime shifts should not be singled

A requirement of a

accordingly and as timely as possible.

11

In conclusion, I want to thank you,

12

Your Honor, for my ability to offer testimony

13

today.

14

for their work that has been poured in.

15

to thank the other stakeholders who are

16

contributing to this dialogue.

17

time and consideration.

I want to thank the Department of Health

18

THE JUDGE:

19

I appreciate it.

20

comments already?

21
22

And I want

Thank you for your

Thank you very much.

You have submitted written

MS. SAND:

I will be submitting

those.

23

THE JUDGE:

24

much.

25

website.

Okay.

Thank you very

And please try to do it on the eComments
We appreciate it.

KIRBY KENNEDY & ASSOCIATES
(952) 922-1955

137

1

MS. SAND:

2

THE JUDGE:

Will do.

Thank you.

Thank you.

3

This turns us to I think Rom E. is next.

4

Michelle N. is next after that.

And then

Madam operator, did we have any other

5
6

All right.

people joining us after Michelle?

7

MS. KNIGHT:

8

from WebEx, nor do we have any additional calls

9

coming in.

So those would be our last two.

10
11

THE JUDGE:

MR. ELWOOD:

13

THE JUDGE:

14

MR. ELWOOD:

THE JUDGE:

17

you are.

18

Very good.

19

okay?

All right.

Please speak up.
Hi.

Can you hear me

I can hear you.

21

THE JUDGE:
little faint.

You are Ron.

There
Okay.

Can you see and hear me

MR. ELWOOD:

I can, Judge.
Okay.

You are a

But just speak loudly.

23

25

Can you hear me?

Oh, you are not Rom.

20

24

Well, let's

now, Your Honor?

16

22

Okay.

forge ahead then with Rom.

12

15

I show no one else

MR. ELWOOD:
try to speak up.

All right.

I will

Is that better?
THE JUDGE:

Yes.

Or even move
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1

closer to your microphone, your computer.

2
3

MR. ELWOOD:

All righty.

Thank

you.

4

THE JUDGE:

5

stating and spelling your first and last name.

6

MR. ELWOOD:

Please start by

My name is Ron

7

Elwood.

8

E-l-w-o-o-d.

9

Legal Services Advocacy Project.

R-o-n, first name.

Last name is

I'm the supervising attorney of the
Which is the

10

statewide division of Legal Aid that provides

11

legislative and administrative advocacy on behalf

12

of Legal Aid statewide.

13

Legal Aid provides free civil legal

14

services for low-income Minnesotans and elders and

15

persons with disabilities of any income.

16

an elder law project focused exclusively on the

17

population these rules are intended to protect.

18

And Legal Aid was one of the organizations named by

19

Governor Dayton for the consumer work group and was

20

one of the groups instrumental in crafting

21

legislative proposals both in 2018 and the 2019

22

proposals that eventually became the Elder Care and

23

Vulnerable Adult Act on which these rules are

24

based.

25

Legal Aid on that group and throughout the

We have

And I personally was the representative for
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1

legislative process.

2

I want to first support the comments

3

both written and oral of the other consumer

4

advocacy organizations you have heard from today

5

and that have submitted written comments.

6

Today specifically with respect to

7

sections 4659.0120 and 4659.0210 we strongly

8

support these resident termination and discharge

9

planning procedures and appeals procedures rules as

10

they have been proposed.

11

written comments in this docket.

12

And we have submitted

The comments that we submitted

13

provide mostly needed technical amendments to avoid

14

legal ambiguity in the areas I just mentioned.

15

substantive comment that I would like to highlight,

16

however, is the one recommending an amendment to

17

clarify that any person of the resident's choosing,

18

not just a legal representative or a person

19

designated in the contract as they are provided in

20

the definitions can represent a resident in an

21

appeal if the resident can't represent themselves.

22

One

I also just want to more generally

23

emphasize the SONAR's discussion of the critical

24

need for these lease and service termination

25

protections.

I quote.

And I further want to note
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1

that the rule specifically called for rulemaking in

2

the areas of procedures for terminations, discharge

3

planning and ensuring resident appeal rights.

4

Therefore, any suggestion to eliminate these rules

5

is simply not legally supportable.

6

specifically requires rules in these areas.

7

The legislation

Further, the SONAR clearly identified

8

why these termination and discharge planning rules

9

are vitally important.

As the SONAR lays bare the

10

existing, and I quote, "problem of inappropriate

11

and unsafe resident discharges in assisted living

12

facilities has only been exacerbated by the present

13

chaos of the pandemic."

14

The rules are necessary and reasonable

15

in providing important detail on exactly how

16

providers ensure termination is accomplished with

17

appropriate due process and that relocation of

18

vulnerable adults to a safe location and an

19

appropriate service provider is accomplished with

20

the least amount of transfer trauma.

21

These rules are not burdensome.

22

Rather, they provide necessary protections to

23

prevent arbitrary terminations and unsafe

24

relocations which were the fundamental drivers of

25

the law that precipitated this rulemaking.
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1

In Legal Aid's experience, terminations

2

are not necessarily a last resort.

And that is

3

precisely why the legislation was crafted as it was

4

and the rules are proposed as they are.

5

are necessary because they ensure providers are

6

taking all of the needed steps to ensure that

7

resident health, safety and due process are

8

protected.

The rules

Thank you.

9

THE JUDGE:

Thank you very much.

10

One moment.

Okay.

11

Mr. Elwood.

And that brings us to I believe our

12

final commenter here today.

13

operator?

14
15

Yes, no new names as

of yet.
THE JUDGE:

Okay.

MR. BAULEKE:

THE JUDGE:

21

MR. BAULEKE:

25

Just

No problem.
Okay.

It looks like

we've got Michelle.
MS. NASH:

23
24

One moment.

going to find Michelle quickly.

20

22

Michelle, are

you ready to go?

18
19

Is that right, madam

MS. KNIGHT:

16
17

Thank you very much,

Okay.

Can you see and

hear me yet?
MR. BAULEKE:

I believe we can
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1

hear you.

We cannot see you yet, Michelle.

2

want to try clicking on your camera button that

3

will be next to your name in the panelists.

4

MS. NASH:

5

my name.

6

should be there.

I will certainly find

I don't know where my name went.

7

MR. BAULEKE:

8

MS. NASH:

9

MR. BAULEKE:

10

MS. NASH:

Oh, there we go.

All right.

THE JUDGE:

All right.

MS. NASH:

Okay, great.

20

MR. BAULEKE:

Now I see

Do you

Nope.

There we are.

Just keep talking

and you will pop up.

22

THE JUDGE:

Now, Michelle, can you

please state and spell your first and last name.

24
25

Do you want

still see me?
THE JUDGE:

23

I

you, Michelle.

19

21

We see

me to speak so I come up?

17
18

All right.

can see Susan, but I can't see Michelle.

15
16

It should be up now.

Okay.

THE JUDGE:

13
14

It

you.

11
12

Do you

MS. NASH:
M-i-c-h-e-l-l-e.

Yes.

It's Michelle,

Nash, N-a-s-h.
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1
2

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

Please

proceed.

3

MS. NASH:

I appreciate the whole

4

day and I'm going to try to keep it brief as I am

5

the last one.

6

comments that I would have commented on, so I have

7

been tweaking this thing all day so you don't have

8

to hear everything.

9

eComments.

And you've heard a number of

And I do have it all in

So I've made my statements shorter,

10

just to draw attention to the smaller home

11

provider.

12

My name again is Michelle Nash.

I

13

owned and operated three residential care homes

14

here in Minnesota for 12 1/2 years.

I am a

15

licensed independent social worker.

I have a

16

master's in policy, procedure and development and

17

have been in the senior care industry for 28 years

18

and dedicate myself to caring for older adults.

19

I have worked in the nursing home when

20

all of the new nursing home regulations changed

21

over.

22

acute care, and now the home care arena with my

23

residential care homes.

24
25

So I have been through that process, the

I am currently a consultant in the
senior care industry and trying to help providers
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1

provide the best quality of care possible to the

2

senior industry.

3

adults as they live out their last chapter of life.

4

In the 12 1/2 years that I owned Legacy

I am driven to protect vulnerable

5

Care Home, we had no substantiated issues of abuse

6

and neglect.

7

as a social worker both in the nursing home and in

8

other arenas.

9

and agree with the rules and regulations to

10

Not to say I haven't been through it

Certainly I know it is happening,

structure and protect older adults.

11

I would like to speak on behalf, you've

12

heard it a couple of times today, from a family

13

member, but I am the president of the Residential

14

Care Provider Network which represents small

15

residential home settings.

16

small owners have submitted comments and they are

17

there.

18

speakers.

19

couple of speakers ago, Shauna and Josh.

20

won't restate theirs.

21

Again, multiple of us

And I want to reiterate a few of the
Lindsey Sand put it fabulously just a
So I

Residential homes just would like to

22

make it clear that these new regulations for

23

assisted living are certainly reasonable in nature,

24

but unreasonable for a small facility that only

25

serves six residents on average.
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We are not zoned commercially.

1

We are

2

zoned residential.

3

physical standards that are now being presented,

4

especially under the emergency preparedness.

5

regulations were designed for commercial buildings

6

that would be housing a large number of people, not

7

a house setting for a small number of people.

8

So I have not been held to the

These

Residential care has been providing

9

care under the comprehensive home care license, but

10

we have not been calling ourselves assisted living.

11

We are not marketing it as such, and so to

12

structure a residential care home we could not be

13

compared to the larger assisted living buildings.

14

We do fall closer to the 245D structure.

15

again, we don't fit perfectly there either due to

16

the number threshold on 245D.

17

But,

The residential care providers are

18

small, but want their voices heard.

19

thank you very much in advance for making sure to

20

read all of the comments through eComments.

21

you.
Okay.

I want to

Thank

22

THE JUDGE:

Very good.

23

I can assure you that I will be reading all of

24

those comments that are submitted as we proceed

25

here.

So I'm going to ask operator Lynn, has
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1

anybody else joined us today?

2

MS. KNIGHT:

3

THE JUDGE:

No.
Okay.

Josh, Mr.

4

Skaar, if you can hear me, I guess I'm asking the

5

agency to weigh in.

6

these kinds of rule hearings that when the last

7

person present speaks that that ends the hearing.

8

If you can remind me on the notice --

9

It has been my practice on

let me just look at the Notice of Hearing.

Okay.

10

The notice says we go from 9:30 to 4:00 p.m.

11

think everybody has been heard today.

12

understanding that everybody who has been heard has

13

pretty much been on most of the day since 9:30 this

14

morning.

MR. SKAAR:

That's what I gather,

THE JUDGE:

Cody, could you

too, Judge.

17
18

And it's my

Is that correct?

15
16

But I

confirm that.

19

MR. BAULEKE:

Yes, we are sitting

20

around the same amount of people.

21

now.

22

dropping off the call.

23

sitting around the same amount of people the whole

24

day.

25

Like at 115, 106

So people who have testified are now kind of
But, yeah, we have been

THE JUDGE:

Okay.

So we have a
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1

larger number of people on the call or on WebEx or

2

on the phone than have spoken.

3

I'm going to give one last call to

4

anybody.

5

want to, you need to immediately indicate that in

6

the WebEx chat.

7

while I continue to talk to do that.

8

will adjourn for today and reconvene tomorrow at

9

9:30 in the morning.

Anybody else want to speak today?

If you

I'm going to give you a minute
Otherwise, we

If anybody who is on this Web

10

hearing today or on the telephone knows of anybody

11

who was planning to come later, you will need to

12

tell them to come tomorrow or to join right now.

13

Because we will close out the hearing, unless there

14

is an objection by the agency to keep it open until

15

4:00.

I would prefer not.

16
17
18

MR. SKAAR:

I agree with that

THE JUDGE:

And the reason we

plan, Judge.

19

won't just keep it open is we have a number of

20

people here from the department, we have a paid

21

Court Reporter and because, really, we have been

22

here since 9:30 a.m., so since most people would

23

have already joined.

24
25

It's now 1:34 p.m.

There being no new

names in the chat box of people who want to speak,
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1

we will adjourn today's hearing.

2

still on this, those of you who are still

3

participating in this hearing, please remember

4

those important deadlines of February 9 for

5

comments and February 17 for rebuttal.

6

proceed again tomorrow at 9:30 a.m., again, with

7

the understanding that we will continue until the

8

last person present is heard.

9

when nobody is willing, is wanting to speak.

And we will

We won't stay on
Okay?

Anything further from the agency at

10
11

For those who are

this point?

12

MR. SKAAR:

13

like to thank everybody for their time and for

14

participating in this process.
THE JUDGE:

15

No, Judge.

Exactly.

I would

Thank you

16

very much.

17

from interested parties, members of the public.

18

know that I will read all of the comments, but

19

putting a face to the comment and as I write and

20

listen I find it extremely helpful because my mind

21

takes in what I'm writing and it seems to absorb it

22

even better so then when I reread the comments

23

everything gels a little bit better.

24

really providing a good public service here by

25

offering your comments.

It is so helpful to have the comments

So you are

The agency will take all
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1

of these things under consideration and then will

2

will respond to those comments.

3

So thank you for your time today.

4

concludes today's hearing.

5

afternoon.

That

Have a good rest of the

6
7

(The Public Hearing adjourned at 1:36 p.m.)

8
9
10
11
12
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